Civilian Reprisal Investigations


Worksheet





CONFIDENTIALITY: Due to the nature of a Title 5 investigation, employees can not be granted absolute confidentiality regarding the details of the investigation prompted by their "Report of Reprisal" filed under Section 7 of the Inspector General Act of 1978.   CRI will restrict, however, distribution of case information to those individuals who have a need to know of that information. 





NOTE ON SELECTION OF CASES: Not all of the cases sent to CRI are selected for investigation.  The U.S. Office of Special Counsel has primary jurisdiction over whistleblower cases, and you may only get access to MSPB through OSC.  





If you wish to take your case to OSC and/or MSPB, go to the following website: <http://www.osc.gov/documents/forms/osc11.pdf>





N.B.  There are certain classes of cases that CRI does not have authority to take:





?	"Douglas factor" cases.  When a federal employer acts unfairly, the employee may have a cause of action before the U.S. Merit Systems Protection Board under the Douglas factors.  While CRI uses the Douglas factors when assessing whether whistleblowers were treated differently than non-whistleblowers, some protected disclosure must have been made by the individual in the first instance.  





?	Security Clearance revocation or denial.  The federal courts have ruled that security clearance actions are not, by definition, "personnel actions".  But if you made a protected disclosure prior to some change in your clearance, and some personnel action occurred after your clearance was changed, still consider filing a "Report of Reprisal". 





Name:   Leroy J. Pletten	





Title/Series: _Position Classification Spec, GS-221	





Agency:  Department of the Army	





E-mail: __lpletten@tir.com	








Regarding the facts of this Report, mark as appropriate: 





____ 		I have a Complaint pending before the U.S. Office of Special Counsel.





_____  	I have a Complaint under Equal Employment Opportunity adjudication.





Reprisal





1.	To what adverse personnel action have you been subjected?





?	Threatened or actual denial of appointment.  	          Date:   01   / 23  /1982 - present   





?	Threatened or actual denial of promotion.		Date:  	   07   / 24   /1980 and          during the entire period to present, beginning with transfer of supervisor Jeremiah Kator. LTC Larry Wigner, Acting Chief of Staff, said TACOM "will no long respond to me."





?	Threatened/actual counseling, warning, reprimand, suspension or termination.	


	


									Date:  	03  / 17  /1980 to present, continuing daily, 1979 to present, ever since disclosures began May-June 1979; and re grievance, EEO, IG cases, espec. due to their content; reprisal becoming ultra-overtly blatant on & after 3-17-1980; but TACOM simultaneously denied having made an ouster decision, during the period of the "decision to terminate," denial done to obstruct appeal rights, but which was fortunately quickly noted by EEOC Henry Perez, Jr., and later referenced by TACOM EEO Manager Gonzellas Williams_    


	


?	Threatened or actual RIF.				Date:        /     /_	    





?	Threatened or actual detail, transfer or reassignment.	Date:  	         /     /	    





?	Threatened or actual denial of reinstatement, restoration or reemployment.


									Date:    03  / 17  /1980	  continuing since March 1980; including forced leave contrary to constitutional and statutory due process. Refusing me reinstatement contrary to OWCP decisions of the "within one year" period (6 weeks) meeting 5 U.S.C. § 8151.(b)(l) criteria. TACOM ordered forced LWOP explicitly contrary to own reg 600-5.14-27 et seq. which only provides for voluntary LWOP, then ignored the RTD date TACOM invented!! TACOM thus also violated the then 5 CFR § 1206 (the OPM requirement that forced leave must follow rules).


    


?	Threatened action or inaction on performance evaluation.


									Date:   11  / 01   /1980 and thereafter.  After TACOM "decison to terminate," noted by EEOC's Henry Perez, Jr., and while TACOM was pretending no such decision existed, TACOM was (inconsistently) refusing to issue me performance evaluations for 1980 and 1981, corroborating "decision to terminate" that TACOM fraudulently denied so long. On the other hand, as ouster has not legally occurred as a matter of law absent notice and agency jurisdiction to do it, and my "continuing demands" for notice, rights, RTD, review, etc., have been refused, the TACOM refusals of performance appraisals are deemed annually recurring each due date missed, and continuing to present.





?	Threatened action regarding pay, benefits, awards, education and/or training.





									Date:   03  / 17  /1980  and continuing thereafter. Health benefits were cut off. No recognitions or awards have been issued, a shocking reversal of the past when I received a number of them, including for zero absenteeism on sick leave. No education or training has been provided, or paid for as done with others to attain more competence, with resultant achievement of higher degrees. No 'step increases' have been provided. Life insurance decision was forced to be made without counseling, i.e., unifnormed choice.  The entire ouster process has destroyed all that would have occurred of these types, inclduing all my promoteability during the entire period, again a major change from prior record, all that would not have occurred but for the reprisal-based ouster contrary to rules and laws, and refusal of informed choice, as herein detailed. Also the benefit of interaction with colleagues is destroyed, including by destroying my reputation such that there is unwillingness to deal with me.





I am facing a reprisal not listed above:





A. This summarizes the voluminous data (developed over time as incidents continued and continued) as presented (attempted to be presented), in the EEO process which begins under 29 CFR § 1613 (now § 1614) at Counselor level. The agency including TACOM in particular, but top to bottom throughout Dept of Army, had EEO Counselors including but not limited to Jeffrey McLain, refuse to deal with me except pro forma. This meant they did not actually counsel me, nor record my issues, nor follow time limits, nor generally meet with me, nor assist in clarifying issues; i.e., they refused to do the "counselor" function. This pattern has long been ongoing, and is continuing. Bottom line is a refusal to listen and process, neither when there was merely ONE incident, nor later when voluminous. This was originally an easy case when there was one issue, non-compliance (reported in safety, grievance, EEO, IG forums seriatim increasingly as resistance to compliance was encountered). Then there occurred reprisal incidents so more issues, e.g., denunciation in newspaper . . .  contradictory dates . . . "counseling" cited by TACOM EEO Officer Gonzellas Williams on ouster . . .  USACARA Report in my favor which TACOM professed that it would obey . . . refusal to keep word . . . my seeking compliance . . . reprisal . . . cut-off of access to EEO review as documented by EEOC . . .  demands I leave voluntarily, e.g., by competitor-for-promotion Carma Averhart . . .  forced leave without 30 days notice of charges . . .  forced medical exam by Dr. David Schwartz (TACOM-directed specialty; he would unexpectedly-to-TACOM rule in my favor) . . . TACOM reprisal-refusal to abide by his Report  . . . more incidents . . . TACOM refusing to assign a counselor thus leaving me to fill out the initial EEO forms myself, which TACOM would do nothing with but date-stamp at most . . . TACOM pretenses it would allow USACARA investigation, by Army and later by Air Force(!)  . . . . witness coaching / affidavit obstruction . . .  suppression of witness statements against interest being collected by USACARA Investigator Jonell Calloway . . .  TACOM false claims to MSPB . . . ex parte TACOM-MSPB inventing of pretended corrective actions while contradictorily denying them! and the ability to even do them! at 7 MSPR 13 . . .  mailing same contrary to mail fraud law (and 18 USC § 1961) . . . my both appealing and accepting same (EEOC understood that the inconsistency was MSPB's, and that MSPB had falsified, 83 FEOR 3046, April 1983, whereas McLain would pretend inability to understand inconsistencies, and blame me the victim!) . . .  more contradictory dating . . . Averhart-Alef-Hoover Application to OPM (giving advantage to two competitors for promotion) . . . TACOM (Emily Bacon) cancelling USACARA Investigation by Jonell Calloway due to her developing incriminating evidence against TACOMers by affidavits, i.e., TACOM's mail fraud (and contrary to 18 USC § 1961)  . . .  later TACOM cancelled the Air Force's investigation before it even began . . .  retroactive forced LWOP SF-50 without reason of record but immediately after MESC ruling for me on unemployment ouster as per no RTD . . . . TACOM fabricated on the SF-50 an RTD date without intent to abide by it . . . mailed it contrary to mail fraud law  (and 18 USC § 1961) . . . TACOM refusing to abide by rules on RTD after OPM rejection of the Averhart-Alef-Hoover application . . . dates invented by TACOM so contradictory that they would even confuse OPM as to when TACOM ousted me! . . . contradictory ouster aspects of "fault" vs non-"fault" . . .  denying me the right to defend and reply . . . TACOM refusal to provide me specifics even when asked directly (Gloria Gilmore) . . .  blatant ouster . . .  another false TACOM claim to allow case processing, this one by BG David Stallings . . . as blackmail and credibility attack, ex parte telling ajudicators that I applied to retire myself, thus mail fraud . . . obstructing CID investigation of same . . . . refusal to process my EEO complaint about that obstruction, disparate treatment not done to others . . . , etc.,  incident after incident . . .  Yes, the series and sequence of unrelentingly more and more unlawful and irregular events do become convulated, contradictory, as whined by "EEO Counselor," Jeffrey McLain, subject of a March 1991 EEOC decision. But please let's meet, listen, look, verify, and/or do whatever counselors are supposed to do to get the review process in motion . . . . NO. "Against interest," McLain documented his role in the protracted hostility pattern, first-hand "against interest" evidence of the pattern, stalling for protracted period and refusing to deal with me, and blaming me the victim for the contradictions, with names of long-term obstructors of review, etc.! Both TACOM's EEO Officer Kenneth Adler and Legal Office Emily Bacon signed off on McLain's hostile attitude; he was simply carrying out the TACOM pattern and policy of not dealing with me. TACOM EEO Officer Gonzellas Williams later documented the limited scope of the so-called "counseling," showing "against interest" the ultra-time-gap during the entire crucial period of the ouster process, so as to obstruct review; and allowing review to "begin" (fraud that it was!!) only after a decade, after TACOM could say ''ha - ha- review is over! You lost!" Signficantly, Williams did not allege TACOM had ever allowed EEO review to proceed on-point past so-called "counseling," into investigation and hearing, despite TACOM's own EEO Reg., 600-5.10, and the then 29 CFR § 1613 guidance, for the reason that same did not occur, was refused, on the matters herein cited. The retaliation is, briefly, because of my disclosures in forums, and exercise of rights to utilize safety reporting, grievance, EEO, and IG complaint forum rights and when all else was obstructed or closed, to MSPB, etc.; and the content of those disclosures and materials, because of the impact on managers' personal behavior, such that they gave priority to their personal desires over the rule of law, as admitted by, e.g, TACOM Chief of Staff Col. John J. Benacquista, which fact was known to management, indeed, by all alleged "reviewers," to be "personal" as distinct from official business, as no official business aspect to Personal Tobacco Smoke (PTS) was or could be cited, neither in fact nor as a matter of law.





B. Agency non-implementation of the March 1991 EEOC decision; the Army Material Command (the organization over TACOM) EEO staff did not agree to counsel or assist, have never met with me, nor intervened to halt the TACOM pattern of refusing me the EEOC forum, February 1980 to present, on the ouster and events leading to it, nor the ouster process itself and events related to same, nor contacted me with respect to following the EEOC guidance. The review refusal by Jeffrey McLain was part of the pattern of such refusal by agency EEO Counselors and review process both before and after, on a continuing daily basis non-stop to present (too numerous to list dates) during two and half decades as multiplied by the number of work days in each year during the period. Note the "continuing demand" concept, Fall River D & F Corp v NLRB, 482 US 27, 52 (1987), "Under the 'continuing demand' rule, when a union [here, me] has made a . . . demand [request for EEO review] that has been rejected by the employer, this demand remains in force until the moment when the employer attains [obeys] the [rule, e.g., 29 CFR § 1613 now § 1614, process)." Each day the processing-refusal continues is a separate violation for standard discipline purposes. Note that TACOM's refusing me the EEO process, verified by EEOC as commencing February 1980, is the exact same initial time frame as the USACARA Report, my efforts to secure its implementation, and the immediate ouster-related actions.





C. TACOM did reprisal by refusing to deal with me under the CG's "Open Door Policy." Personnel Officer Archie Grimmett opposed my having such meeting with CG MG Oscar Decker, Jr. And, later, Acting Chief of Staff LTC Larry Wigner admitted refusal generally, on the basis of my having previously filed requests for review. Same was due to my protected disclosures, in safety, grievance, EEOC and IG forums, and their content, cited herein. Refusing to deal with employee due to prior cases has been deemed discriminatiory, in e.g., EEOC v Board, 957 F2d 424 (CA 7, 1992) and EEOC v General Motors Corp, 826 F Supp 1122 (D ND Ill, 1993). My "Open Door" request is a "continuing demand."  Each day refused is a separate violation for discipline purposes.





D. TACOM cut off my access to entire review forum, EEOC's, as of February 1980 (verified by EEOC 23 February 1982). It is well-established in law that employees can seek relief under two comprehensive statutory remedial schemes: Title VII, for claims of employment discrimination, and the Civil Service Reform Act, for non discriminatory employment claims. Coe v NLRB, 40 F Supp 2d 1049 (ED Wis 1999), a fact acknowledged for Coe, but never for me. Instead, TACOM has actively obstructed my obtaining review under the honest Title VII system, vs the notoriously hostile CSRA - OSC - MSPB system. Such blatant, early, and protracted cut-off of access to the Title VII system shows intent, intense motive, premeditation to do the wrongful acts cited herein, as surely as a signed confession. The government itself prosecutes (for others!) in case of extortioner refusal "to process grievances." U.S. v Russo, 708 F2d 209, 212 (CA 6, 1983).  But here the government acts differently.  And instead of doing his counselor function, McLain continued the refusal process, and (fortunately for me) documented it against interest.  Concerning TACOM's fear to allow review, "flight" from review, its "silence," "Silence is often evidence of the most persuasive character," U.S. ex rel. Bilokumsky v Tod, 263 US 149, 153-154 (1923). TACOM's "flight" from, refusal of, normal review like others receive, has "probative value to guilt," Wangerin v State, 73 Wis 2d 427; 243 NW2d 448, 453 (1976), citing U. S. v Crisp, 435 F2d 354 (CA 7, 1970).





E. TACOM did extortion to stop my disclosures and filings, and due to the content thereof, including whistleblowing on violations (extortion admitted under oath by Chief of Staff Col. John Benacquista, admitting against interest at, e.g., Deposition pages 13, 25, 47, 62 undermining his own pretense of having abided by the USACARA Report: "All he [Pletten] had to do [to not be ousted] was to say, 'I agree that this [work area] is reasonably free of contaminants.'" (4/23/82 Dep. p. 62). "All" I "had to do was to" change my anticipated testimony, or be put on enforced leave, fired, retired. "All he had to do was to" lie, deny the extant hazardous PTS conduct.  TACOM thus used the well-documented federal manager recipe for reprisals, and more. (The reprisal "recipe" or "canning directions" is noted by, e.g., David W. Ewing, "Canning Directions: How the Government Rids Itself of Troublemakers," Harpers 16, 18, 22 (August 1979); and Thomas M. Devine and Donald G. Aplin, "Whistleblower Protection-The Gap Between the Law and Reality," 31 Howard Law Journal (#2) 223-239 (1988)). TACOM refused to tell me 5 USC § 7513.(b) charges, refused to abide by the OPM guidance that that law mandates; refused advance notice pre-decision, refused to tell me appeal forum rights. References: MCL § 750.213; MSA § 28.410 (Michigan extortion ban law); pertinent case law, e.g., People v Atcher, 65 Mich App 734; 238 NW2d 389 (1975) (after questioning her "whether she was going to testify"); and US v Wilford, 710 F2d 439 (CA 8, 1983). "One cardinal principle must be borne in mind, that any element of illegality essential to a scheme or combination makes the whole illegal." Newton Co v Erickson, 70 Misc 291, 298; 126 NYS 949, 954 (6 Jan 1911). "Violence . . . is not limited to physical contact or injury, but may include picketing conducted with misleading signs, false statements, publicity, and veiled threats by words and acts." Black's Law Dictionary, 6th ed (St. Paul: West, 1990), p 1570. Courts do not "subscribe to the oft-repeated contention and argument that the use of the word 'violence' . . . is limited always to physical contact or injury. A blackjack applied to [a person's] skull may in the long run be less serious than . . . misleading signs, false statements and publicity . . . and insidious propaganda [or a Colonel's demand, or case processing refusals]. The scalp wound may be healed through the surgeon's art." Esco Operating Corp v Kaplan, 144 Misc 646, 650; 258 NYS 303, 309 (1932). '"The very plot is an act in itself.' Mulcahy v Queen, L R 3 HL 306, 317. But an act which, in itself, is merely a voluntary muscular contraction, derives all its character from the consequences which will follow it under the circumstances in which it was done. When the acts consist of making a combination calculated to cause temporal damage, the power to punish such acts, when done maliciously, cannot be denied because they are to be followed and worked out by conduct which might have been lawful if not preceded by the acts. No conduct has such an absolute privilege as to justify all possible schemes of which it may be a part. The most innocent and constitutionally protected of acts or omissions may be made a step in a criminal plot, and if it is a step in a plot, neither its innocence nor the Constitution is sufficient to prevent the punishment of the plot by law." Aiken v Wisconsin, 195 US 194, 205-206 (1904).  Leave and ousters can indeed be lawful, but not when preceded by illegality, or even mere regulation violations, as in this case, doubled, multiplied violations stacked onto even more violations.





F. TACOM did the ouster process contrary to 5 USC § 7513.(b) notice and Douglas criteria, while ignoring the USACARA Investigation Report in my favor (despite its finality, Spann v Gen. McKenna, 615 F2d 137 [CA 3, 1980]), i.e., TACOM retaliated because of my having filed and won same, including due to the content, subject matter, involved.   A sudden no-notice ouster denies the victim the ability to defend, like an attack from behind one's back; the intent is to prevent defense, not allow it, and here, clearly not to allow notice and defense as the Constitution, due process, statute, rules, and case law mandate. Advance notice rules and concepts are both a constitutional and statutory mandate, pursuant to a long line of case law, e.g., Deak v Pace, 88 US App DC 50, 52; 185 F2d 997, 999 (1950) (notice must not be so vague as to allow only "general denials"); Money v Anderson, 93 US App DC 130, 134; 208 F2d 34, 38 (1953) (proper notice has "names . . . places . . . dates" of alleged acts; "must be specific enough to provide a fair opportunity for refutation by the innocent who have no knowledge of the conduct charged"); Mulligan v Andrews, 93 US App DC 375, 377; 211 F2d 28, 30 (1954) (notice must not be merely in conclusory words [as so blatantly done here]); Baughman v Green, 97 US App DC 150; 229 F2d 331 (1956) ("lengthy and detailed" example); Boilermakers v Hardeman, 401 US 233, 245 (1971) (notice means a "statement or citation of the written regulations . . . said to have been violated [&] detailed statement of the facts"); Boddie v Connecticut, 401 US 371 (1971) (due process in advance at meaningful time); Nat'l Rlty & C Co, Inc v Occ Safety & Health Rev Comm'n, 160 US App DC 133, 143; 489 F2d 1257, 1267 n 40 (1973) ("It is patently unfair for an agency to decide a case on a legal theory or set of facts which was not presented at the hearing [citations omitted]") (here, such must be "presented" in the advance notice); Mandel v TACOM, 509 F2d 1031, 1032 (CA 6) cert den 422 US 1008 (1975) ("item by item," one of Pletten's own cases as upheld as done right!!); Smith v Dept of Interior, 9 MSPR 342, 344 (1981), “specific examples” of “alleged performance deficiencies” “to meet the 'specificity' test” as “[a] notice of proposed adverse action is required to be specific enough so that the employee is presented with sufficient information to enable him or her to make an 'informed reply.' S. Rep. No. 95-969, 95th Cong., 2d Sess. 50 (1978), U.S. Code Cong. & Admin. News 1978, p 2723, Report of the Senate Committee on Governmental Affairs”; Long v Air Force, 683 F2d 301 (CA 9, 1982) ("numerous examples of specific errors"); Sullivan v Navy, 720 F2d 1266, 1273-4 (Fed, 1983) and 5 CFR § 752.404(f) (must state all reasons including ex parte contacts, here, numerous of them as discovered years after-the-fact [Benacquista-Decker, OPM-Averhart, Averhart-Hoover, Hoover-Stallings, Braun-AMC, Stallings-Bacon-OPM, TACOM-MSPB, TACOM-courts]); Barnhart v U. S. Treasury Dept, 588 F Supp 1432 (D CIT, 1984) (duty to obey administrative procedures act, 5 USC § 706; due process requires right to be heard at/in meaningful time/manner; unacceptable to not be told charge until decision time, too late to present pre-decision reply/defense); Cleveland Bd of Educ v Loudermill, 470 US 532 (1985). Even slaves had a right to proper notice of charges!: Josephine, a slave v State of Mississippi, 39 Miss (10 Geo) 613, 647 (1861): The right to notice is “a substantial right . . . and not a mere question of form or proceeding.” TACOM put me really low on the totem pole! to terrorize not only me, but as a terror warning to all federal employees, this can happen to you too.  TACOM fury was that due to my personnel management and subject matter expertise, I'd win in administrative forum, including USACARA's and EEOC's [note, by the rules of that era, USACARA did both grievance and EEO investigations]. TACOM felt that if it let me have more USACARA review, USACARA would naturally follow its own then-recently issued Report, whereas the notoriously hostile MSPB could be counted on to ignore events leading up to the ouster (as in Shoaf v Dept of Agriculture, 260 F3d 1336 [CA Fed, 2001]), and to fabricate whatever events and claims, any and all, that might supposedly "justify" the ouster without charges, notice, and rights, to substitute in its decision, "reasons" which no advance notice had cited!!  (as did happen, e.g., 7 MSPR 13, verified 83 FEOR 3046). MSPB could be counted on in advance to NOT follow SEC v Chenery, 332 US 194, 196-197 (1947) ("judge the propriety of action solely by the grounds invoked"). TACOM and MSPB in essence "fashioned [a new position solely] for the purpose of [this] litigation," behavior rejected in Alaniz v OPM, 728 F2d 1460, 1465 (CA Fed, 1984). TACOM advance confidence in MSPB's hostility and corruption was NOT misplaced.  TACOM counted on MSPB to disregard the rule of law, with respect to notice, forced leave ban analyses of both before and after, e.g., Hart v U.S., 148 Ct Cl 10, 16-17; 284 F2d 682, 686-687 (1960); Smith v Dept of Interior, 9 MSPR 342 (1981); Heikken v D.O.T., 18 MSPR 439 (1983); Van Skiver v Postal Service, 25 MSPR 66 (1984); Woodall v FERC, 28 MSPR 192 (1985); Miyai v D.O.T., 32 MSPR 15, 20 (1986); Thomas v Gen Svcs Admin, 756 F2d 86, 89-90 (CA Fed, 1985); Mercer v Dept of Health & Human Svcs, 772 F2d 856 (CA Fed, 1985); Pittman v Army and MSPB, 832 F2d 598 (CA Fed, 1987); Childers v Air Force, 36 MSPR 486 (1988); Bivens v Dept of Navy, 38 MSPR 67 (1988); Brown v Dept of Navy, 49 MSPR 277 (1991); and Comptroller General decisions, e.g., 38 Comp Gen 203; 39 Comp Gen 154; and 41 Comp Gen 774, cited in Federal Personnel Manual Supplement (FPM Supp) 752-1, S1-6c(4)(c) - (d) (4 Feb 1972).  (FPM Supplements are similar to ALR's, writing in personnel language guidance as to what to do in discipline cases, based on court and other authoritative rulings).  Significantly, due process is a constitutional right, not only statutory and regulatory.  A constitution [or law] is not satisfied with half-way measures and does not prefer dissimulation to straightforwardness; duties and requirements may not be avoided on ground that it might be a lot of work to comply. Alan v County of Wayne, 388 Mich 210, 200 NW2d 628, 67 ALR3d 1079 (1972), adhered to 388 Mich 626, 202 NW2d 277 (1972). McLain like others at TACOM could easily grasp that allowing me genuine review, would mean success on my part.





H. TACOM not only did not follow the Douglas criteria, it followed none known to anyone in the personnel management/human resources occupation! The Douglas case alone shows that MSPB violated its own professed guidance in my case.  MSPB would later even confess to awareness of conducting a "board of investigation," Miller v Dept of Veterans Affairs, 92 MSPR 610 [2000], but for me, disregarded that none was done for me, as TACOM had been assured ex parte in advance that anything TACOM did against me, including crimes, would be upheld by MSPB. MSPB would even later confess against interest awareness of lack of agency evidence, having unlawful motive, and doing disparate treatment, singling employee out, as in Larson v Dept of Army, 91 MSPR 511 (2002). Examples of standard personnel management/human resources critera not followed include, e.g.,





		(A). the private enterprise seven point criteria of Grief Bros Coop Corp, 42 Lab Arb (BNA) 555 (1964), Combustion Engineering, Inc, 42 Lab Arb (BNA) 806 (1964)


	(1) Forewarning employee of possible consequences of conduct (No, not done here) 


	(2) The allegedly violated rule or order must be reasonably related to orderly, efficient, and safe operations (No, no rule has been cited that I "violated")


	(3) Before administering discipline, employer is to investigate whether employee did, in fact, violate or disobey the rule or order (No, no investigation occurred)


	(4) Employer investigation must be conducted fairly and objectively (None done)


	(5) In investigation, employer must obtain sufficient evidence or proof that employee was guilty as charged. (No, as, e.g., OPM denies a BFOQ requirement even exists, as does the TACOM hiring form, etc., etc.)


	(6) Employer must apply its rules, orders, and penalties evenhandedly and without discrimination (I was singled out for ouster without TACOM citing any rules I supposedly violated, as I reported the hazard to all that TACOM's own Dr. Holt and E. Braun were well aware of, and had recommended solution of before I began whistleblowing) 


	(7) Degree of discipline must be reasonably related to seriousness of offense and employee's record. (No. Pletten committed no offense; TACOM issued no notice citing any offense)


           "'No' answer to one or more normally signifies that just and proper cause did not exist."





		(B.) the twelve point civil service criteria of Douglas v Vet. Adm., 5 MSPR 280, 305-306 (1981)


	(1) Nature and seriousness of the offense, and its relation to the employee's duties, position, and responsibilities, including whether the offense was intentional or technical or inadvertent, or was committed maliciously or for gain, or was frequently repeated (No, no offense was cited, no job duties listed, i.e., none of foregoing cited)


	(2) Employee's job level and type of employment, including supervisory or fiduciary role, contacts with the public, and prominence of the position. (No notice even cites the job description, so cannot tell from documentation any of this!)


	(3) Employee's past disciplinary record (None, my record was exemplary)


	(4) Employee's past work record, including length of service, performance on the job, ability to get along with fellow workers, and dependability. (Work and attendance were above-norm; excellent rapport with fellow workers; thoroughly dependable)


	(5) Effect of the offense upon the employee's ability to perform at a satisfactory level and its effect upon supervisors' confidence in the employee's ability to perform assigned duties (No offense; supervisor Kator deemed my performance at above "satisfactory" level, granted WGI; no performance appraisals were issued thereafter)


	(6) Consistency of the penalty with those imposed upon other employees for the same or similar offenses. (Singled out in reprisal for citing hazard its Dr. Holt and E. Braun knew of)


	(7) Consistency of the penalty with any applicable agency table of penalties (No)


	(8) Notoriety of the offense or its impact upon the reputation of the agency (No offense)


	(9) Clarity with which the employee was on notice of any rules violated in committing the offense, or had been warned about the conduct in question (No notice of non-existent offense)


	(10) Potential for the employee's rehabilitation (None needed, no offense was committed)


	(11) Mitigating circumstances surrounding the offense such as unusual job tensions, personality problems, mental impairment, harassment, or bad faith, malice or provocation on the part of others involved in the matter. (Agency was deliberately violating its own rules as own staff Holt and Braun knew; agency disagreed with AR 1-8, engaged in defiance of law and its own rules and USACARA Report)


	(12) Adequacy and effectiveness of alternative sanctions to deter such conduct in the future by the employee or others; and citing 5 C.F.R. § 731.202(c); Federal Personnel Manual, ch. 751, subch. 1-2 Dec. 21, 1976); CSC Board of Appeals and Review, Memorandum No. 2; Francisco v Campbell, 625 F2d 266, 269-70 (CA 9, 1980); Howard v U.S., Civ LV-77-219 RDF (D Nev, 3 July 1980) (Mem. Order at 9); Giles v U.S., 213 Ct Cl 602; 553 F2d 647, 650-51 602 (1977); Boyce v U.S., 211 Ct Cl 57; 543 F2d 1290, 1294 (1976); Tucker v U.S., 224 Ct Cl 266; 624 F2d 1029, 1034 (1980); Byrd v Campbell, 591 F2d 326, 331 (CA 5, 1979); Clark v U.S., 162 Ct Cl 477, 485 (1963) (no misconduct done, no BFOQ of record unmet, so nothing to deter!)





		(C.) the five-point criteria of Yorkshire v MSPB, 746 F2d 1454, 1456 (CA Fed, 1984).


	(1) Where the agency engaged in a "prohibited personnel practice" (5 § 7701(g)(l)) (here, e.g., using a BFOQ it knows does not exist, and applied to no other employee; and having competitors for promotion involved in the ouster process, a benefit, indeed conflict of interest)


	(2) Where the agency's action was "clearly without merit" (5 § 7701(g)(l)), or was "wholly unfounded," or the employee is "substantially innocent" of the charges brought by the agency (no charge of any misconduct was made in any advance notice).


	(3) Where the agency initiated the action against the employee in "bad faith," including:


		a. Where the agency's action was brought to "harass" the employee


		      (Benacquista confessed against interest to this);


		b. Where the agency's action was brought to "exert improper pressure on the


		     employee to act in certain ways" (here, Benacquista's extortion).


	(4) Where the agency committed a "gross procedural error" which "prolonged the proceeding" or "severely prejudiced" the employee (no pre-decision advance notice, refusing me ability to defend against unknown charges, beyond procedural to substance as the slave case of Josephine, supra, 39 Miss 613, 647 shows; refusal to notify of review rights; refusal to allow use of the EEOC 29 CFR § 1613 review system beginning Feb 1980, etc., etc.).


	(5) Where the agency "knew or should have known that it would not prevail on the merits" when it brought the proceeding. (The agency blatantly knew, as evidenced by its cutting off access to an entire review forum, EEOC's, during the crucial decade, and as evident throughout, including by its repeated false claims.)





[Pursuant to Wyle v R. J. Reynolds Industries, Inc, 709 F2d 585 (CA 9, 30 June 1983), when an organization law firm engages in deliberate ignorance of facts, that is deemed equivalent of knowledge; as failure to investigate binds it to the underlying misconduct.]





G. TACOM refusing my returns to duty made pursuant to the BFOQ concepts of precedents such as Bevan v NY State T R System, 74 Misc 2d 443; 345 NYS2d 921 (1973); and TACOM assuring that adjudicators not even acknowledge same. TACOM disregarded BFOQ's and ex parte arranged "adjudicators" to do likewise, contrary to well-established case law such as say to "examine the position descriptions," look for "legitimate job requirements," e.g. Coleman v Darden, 595 F2d 533 (1979), Stalkfleet v U.S. Postal Service, 6 MSPB 536, 541 (1981). Genuine review once commenced will find Personal Tobacco Smoke (PTS) is not, never was, "in the requirements for any position." As Col. Benacquista admitted, Dep p 25, PTS is indeed "personal," not official business, and definitely not in the job description and BFOQs (my job description in bottom-line essential requires ability to do organizational and job analysis, verbalize, and write memos!--something this form by itself, shows I can do! combined with verbal explanation as need be!) A BFOQ requirement of record is a due process and threshold condition precedent for even thinking of proposing a "dis"qualification case. Personal preferences (for high school diploma, airline workers, etc.) lack legal standing as BFOQ's. Knotts v U.S., 128 Ct Cl 489; 121 F Supp 630 (1954), Diaz v Pan Am Airways, Inc., 442 F2d 385 cert den 404 US 950 (1971); Griggs v Duke Power Co, 401 US 424 (1971); U.S. v Bethlehem Steel Corp, 3 EPD 8257; 446 F2d 652, 662-663 (CA 2, 1971); Robinson v Lorillard Corp, 444 F2d 791 (CA 4, 1971), Brown v Gaston Co D.M. Co, 457 F2d 1377 (CA 4, 1972); Nance v UCC, CPD, 397 F Supp 436 (1975); Barnes v Costle, 561 F2d 983 (1977); Tomkins v Pub Svc El & Gas Co, 568 F2d 1044 (1977), etc. Any TACOM claim (none was ever made on the record, absent advance notice of charges; all was done retoactively, ex posto facto, by innuendo, or ex parte, to prevent my being able to defend and reply) that PTS is a BFOQ "suffers from a further inadequacy in that it failed to comply with 29 C.F.R. § 1607.5(b)(3), which requires that criteria used to predict job performance 'must represent major or critical work behaviors as revealed by careful job analysis.'" Albemarle Paper Co v Moody, 422 US 405, 432 n 30 (1975); U.S. v Chicago, 549 F2d 415, 431 (CA 7, 1970). At 432, "Job-relatedness can only be determined where the criteria for selection are clearly identified." That means "individualized inquiry" on job description requirements, Hall v Postal Service, 857 F2d 1073, 1078-9 (CA 6, 1988). TACOM did none, no "job analysis," "inquiry." "Griggs and its progeny dictate that the employer must bear the burden of proving that the physical criteria are job related." Prewitt v Postal Service, 662 F2d 292 (CA 5, 1981).  TACOM has never met this "burden." Certainly "the job requirements and qualifications had never been formally changed" to include the alleged BFOQ (here, PTS), not even de minimis reference, Sabol v Snyder, 524 F2d 1009, 1011 (CA 10, 1975). Shimp v New Jersey Bell Tele Co, 145 N J Super 516, 523; 368 A2d 408, 411 (1976) (the PTS-permission-cessation case immediately preceding the promptly issued DOD Inst. 6015.18; 32 CFR § 203) had shown that it is not necessary to fill the air with PTS for the job to be done ("There is "no necessity to fill the air with tobacco smoke in order to carry on defendant's�business"). TACOM, EEOC, OPM, MSPB, etc. know that PTS is unlisted as a BFOQ for ANY job, and is definitely not a "selection" matter. (EEOC would follow the law; the others would notoriously not follow the rule of law as standard policy, and I am just one of many harmed as a result). PTS is definitely not a factor listed on the TACOM hiring form that TACOM's own Dr. Holt signed for me. It is especially extraordinary to do an ouster on a "qualifications" basis for a non-existing BFOQ. Non-requirements (e.g., PTS) "can never prevent performance of the job," Montgomery Ward v Bureau of Labor, 280 Or 163; 570 P2d 76;16 FEP 80 (1977). An alleged BFOQ that does not exist on the record is "not reasonably related to the duties of the position. McDonnell Douglas Corp v Green, 411 US 792 . . .  (1973)," cited in Hill v Nettleton, 455 F Supp 514, 519 (1978). An employee "is unimpaired in relation to jobs which" have no on-point BFOQ. An "employer may only disqualify a person for job performance related impairments," says Eugene Schoon, "Private Rights of Action," 13 Valparaiso Univ Law Rev 453, 485 (1979). This means BFOQ's of record. No job description, no hiring document, no 5 USC § 7513.(b) notice cited any BFOQ or performance impairment.  There can't be one, as PTS is not a "requirement" recognized in "qualifications" law and case law. Indeed, a qualifications waiver had been issued me September 1977 to place me on the very job at issue! William A. Weiss, Ph.D., C.P.A., "Can you afford to hire smokers?" 26 Personnel Administrator (# 5) 71-78 (May 1981), p 77 says about the "feasibility of no-smoking policies: we have yet to see one that has failed." P. 76 notes that "Smoke-free work environnments are clean, healthy and conducive to good working relationships." "Working and smoking don't mix," says Dr.Weis, in "Profits up in Smoke," 60 Personnel Journal (#3) 162-165 (March 1981). Eliminating smoking serves to reduce personnel costs 20%; insurance premiums 30%; maintenance charges 50%; furniture replacement 50%; disability payments 75%. Smokers are ". . . distinguishable by high rates of absenteeism, early mortality and low productivity . . ." (p 165).  Mark A. Rothstein, "Employee selection based on susceptibility to occupational illness," 81 Michigan Law Review (Issue #6) 1379-1496 (May 1983), at p 1481, note 671, says the PTS "hazard in Shimp did not result from a work process and could be remedied rather easily." Nothing in personnel writings and law shows PTS to be a BFOQ! Michigan law MCL § 750.27, MSA § 28.216, bans the prime source (cigarettes) of PTS. Federal law 5 USC § 7902.(d) bans hazards, as do 29 USC § 651-678 and 29 CFR § 1910.1000. Case law examples include Society of Plastics Industry, Inc v OSHA, 509 F2d 1301, 1309 (CA 2, 1975) (staus quo is no restriction); AFL-CIO v Marshall, 199 US App DC 54, 76; 617 F2d 636, 658 (1979) (obey safety law even if "never before been attained"); National Realty and Construction Co, Inc v Occ. Safety and Health Rev Comm'n, 160 US App DC 133, 489 F2d 1257, 1266, n 36 (1973) (Safety duty is "unqualified and absolute"; employers have a duty to "prevent and suppress hazardous" conduct by employees, including above what "the average workplace" does); American Textile Mfrs. Inst v Donovan, 452 US 490, 509 (1981) (confirming the high safety duty); Am Smelting & R. Co v Occ. Safety & Health Rev Comm'n, 501 F2d 504, 515 (1974) (mere 'monitoring,' whether called 'biological' or another term, is not 'preventing' and 'suppressing' hazard, but rather merely watching it continue! thus is not compliance as it does "not eliminate or even reduce the hazard," but merely reveals it; monitoring is what MSPB claimed to uphold June 1981, 7 MSPR 13, knowing it was both meaningless and not happening); duty to obey both the "general duty clause" and specific 29 CFR 1910 numerics, Internat'l Union, UAW v General Dynamics Land Systems Division, 259 US App DC 369; 815 F2d 1570 cert den 484 US 976 (1987). There is thus clearly no "right" to cause hazards for others as TACOM PTS emitters were doing; nor for TACOM to refuse compliance with AR 1-8, etc., as it was doing. (For analogous concepts of no right to not comply with a rule, e.g., on breathalyzer rule compliance, see Matter of Knust, 288 NW2d 776 (ND, 1980) (no provision for any refusal of compliance, reasonable or otherwise); handguns; Quilici v Village of Morton Grove, 695 F2d 261, 267 (CA 7, 1982) cert den 464 US 863 (1983) (the right is so limited, a ban does not violate it). Similar limited rights concept exists on smoking says NYC C.L.A.S.H., Inc v City of New York, et al., Case 03 Civ 5463 (VM) [315 F Supp 2d 461]; 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 5946 (SD NY, 8 April 2004) (upholding constitutionality of pure air rights smoking restrictions); and Lafayette County Food and Beverage Ass'n v Lexington-Fayette County Council, et al., No. 2003-SC-0978-TG [131 SW3d 745]; 2004 Ky LEXIS 94 (22 April 2004) (upholding smoke-free pure air rights  law, government has right and duty to protect safety and health). Presidential Executive Order 11807 circulated on-post in OSHA Document 2223 (December 1975) says government is to set safety example. TACOM Reg 190-4 bans drugs and discourages personal items on-post, does not "require" them! TACOM itself in April 1993 issued a substantial cessation of permission for PTS activity, a far-cry from a "required" BFOQ! Safety office memos and articles warned of dangers such as carbon monoxide, a major cigarette ingredient, 42,000 pm says Surgeon General, vs OSHA criteria in 50-100 ppm range. Rulings uncontaminated by ex parte contact say things like, "The Company expects the employees to live within the restriction," Schnadig Corp & Uphol. Int'l Un of No. Am., 83-1 ARB 8267 (1985), p 4189. No non-ex-parte-communication-with adjudicator had ever (before the aberrant claims in my situation outside the body of law) taken the view that PTS is a BFOQ beyond government and employer control.  All precedents had been to the contrary, e.g., Com v Thompson, 53 Mass (12 Metc) 251 (1847); State v Heidenhain, 42 La Ann 483; 7 So 621; 21 Am St Rep 388 (1890); Austin v State, 101 Tenn 563; 566-7; 48 SW 305, 306; 70 Am St Rep 703 (1898) aff'd 179 US 343 (1900); Whiting-Mead Comm Co v Industrial Accident Com'n, 178 Cal. 505, 173 P 1105 (1917); Dzikowska v Superior Steel Co, 259 Pa 578; 105 A 551 (1918); State v Nossaman, 107 Kan 715, 193 P 547 (1920), app dism 258 US 633 (1922); Feeney v Standard Oil Co, 58 Cal App 587, 209 P 85 (1922); Tanton v McKenney, 226 Mich 245; 197 NW 510 (1924); Keyser Canning Co v Klots Throwing Co, 94 W Va 546; 118 SE 521 (1925); Tiralongo v Stanley Works, 104 Conn 331; 155 A 98 (1926); Allen v Posternock, 107 Pa Super 332; 163 A 336 (1932); Jones v Eastern Greyhound Lines, Inc, 288 NYS 523; 159 Misc 662 (1936); McKinney v Bland, 188 Okla 661; 112 P2d 798 (1941); McDonough v Sears, Roebuck & Co, 130 NJL 530; 33 A2d 861 (1943); Bradford's Case, 319 Mass 621; 67 NE2d 149 (1946); U. S. L. Corp. v P. L. & T. Corp, 142 F2d 197 (CA 2, 1944); George v Bekins Van & Storage Co, 33 Cal 2d 854; 205 P2d 1037 (1949); Bluestein v Scoparino, 277 App Div 554; 100 NYS 2d 577 (1950); Knecht v Castleman River R Co, 104 F2d 677 (CA 5, 1959); Petition of Republic of France, 171 F Supp 497 (D SD Tex., 1959); Merritt v United States, 332 F2d 397 (CA 1, 1964) ("A sergeant . . . negligently set fire to the house by smoking in bed . . . . Plaintiff . . . contends that . . . was in the scope of his employment. We would need persuasive authority to show . . . this . . . ."); Bouillier v Samsan Co, 100 RI 676; 219 A2d 133 (1966); Com v Hughes, 468 Pa 502; 564 A2d 506 (1976); Dickerson v Reeves, 588 SW2d 854 (Tex Civ App, 1979); Smith v Western Electric Co, 643 SW2d 10; 37 ALR 4th  473 (Mo App, 1982); Shimp v New Jersey Bell Tele Co, 145 N J Super 516; 368 A2d 408 (1976) [the immediate case that had given risen to DOD Inst 6015.18; 32 CFR § 203, and thus to AR 1-8], etc. See also Annotations, e.g., 4 LNS 528 (1906); 51 LNS 562 (1914); LRA 1917F, 863 (1917); LRA 1918B, 988 (1918); 5 ALR 1521 (1920); 6 ALR 1574 (1920); 13 ALR 997 (1921); 20 ALR 926 (1922); 31 ALR 294 (1924); 33 ALR 1180 (1924); 62 ALR 105 (1929); 86 ALR 792 (1933); 80 ALR 2d 681 (1961); 20 ALR 3d 893 (1968); 46 ALR3d 1342 (1972); 11 ALR4th 1160, § 7, p 1174 (1982); 37 ALR 4th 480 (1985); 55 ALR 4th 1238 (1987); 63 ALR 4th 1021 (1988); 65 ALR 4th 1205 (1988); 25 ALR 5th 343-390 (1994); 36 ALR 5th 377-393 (1996); 36 ALR 5th 541 (1996); 46 ALR 5th 813 (1997); 66 ALR 5th 237 (1999) (in none is PTS cited as BFOQ). And beyond that overwhelming aspect, note this very pertinent principle. "The presence of danger cannot bring the act of smoking within the scope of . . . employment; it tends rather to exclude it." Jefferson v Derbyshire Farmers, Ltd., 2 KB 281, 284 (1921). "Workmen are not employed to smoke." Maloney Tank Mfg Co v. Mid-Continent Petroleum Corp., 49 F2d 146 (CA 10, 1931). There is no "business necessity" of record for PTS. The word "employment" is the sine qua non for a BFOQ.  BFOQ's are not theoretical to spout off about, they MUST be IN "employment," the why behind the hiring of people to do job functions.  Applicants are not hired to emit PTS!  ALL personnel and human resources staff know this! So the TACOM-MSPB corollary claims about "accommodation" are thus clearly false and fraudulent.  "Accommodation" is for what is both in "employment" and at the heart of the job position, not incidental to it. Baker v Postal Service, 71 MSPR 680 (1996) (and surely not for something not even listed even incidentally in the job duties, third party behavior prohibited by regulations and laws). The decisions in my situation have clearly been bizarre and aberrational, gross deviation from the body of law, unsuitable as a legitimate precedent for others, except as one to avoid (and for prosecuting the makers of the claims under mail fraud laws (and 18 USC § 1961). Truly the decisions hitherto are a Chicago product, outcome, a Chicago "natural and probable consequence," "Operation Greylord" style. Here I was doing the job well, as McLain could easily see the record, recognized for doing better than coworkers, until summarily ousted without advance notice. TACOM using a non-existent BFOQ is jurisdictional, see 5 USC § 552.(a)(l)(C) - (D) and its case law, showing it makes publication of a qualification requirement "jurisdictional," Hotch v U.S., 212 F2d 280 (1954); Bowen v City of New York, 476 US 467 (1986). Others have had actions taken against them canceled when there was no notice of a qualification requirement or other rule. See Morton v Ruiz, 415 US 199, 231 (1974); W. G. Cosby Transfer & Storage Corp v Dept of Army, 480 F2d 498, 503 (CA 4, 1973) (Army has done this violation before); Onweiler v U.S., 432 F Supp 1226, 1229 (D ID, 1977); Berends v Butz, 357 F Supp 143, 154-158 (D Minn, 1973); Anderson v Butz, 550 F2d 459 (CA 9, 1977); Dean v Butz, 428 F Supp 477, 480 (D HAW, 28 Feb 1977); St. Elizabeth Hospital v U.S., 558 F2d 8, 13-14 (CA 9, 1977); Aiken v Obledo, 442 F Supp 628, 654 (D ED Cal, 1977); Historic Green Springs, Inc v Bergland, 497 F Supp 839, 854-857 (D ED Va, 1980); Vigil v Andrus, 667 F2d 931, 936-939 (CA 10, 1982). TACOM using a non-existent BFOQ is a prohibited personnel practice, violating 5 USC § 2302(b)(6).  McLain like predecessors could grasp that allowing me genuine review, would mean immediate success on my part, something TACOM had never allowed, and was not about to do then.  As letting me have uncoerced review was not, is not, TACOM thus Army policy, naturally McLain refused it.  The lack of uncoerced review is especially clear due to an additional jurisdictional point. I sought EEOC  review long prior to my subsequent contact with MSPB, hence MSPB could not have jurisdiction, by its own words in Carreno v Dept of Army, 22 MSPR 515, 518 (1984) admitting its own lack of jurisdiction when employee first sought review in the 29 CFR § 1613 EEOC forum. And honoring even legitimately obtained prior decisions only applies if the party (here, me) had already had both (a) "a full and fair opportunity" for me to have presented my case, and (b) prior "adverse findings," U.S. v Utah Construction & Mining Co, 384 US 394, 422 (1966).  Since it is ultra clear that TACOM made sure that I would NOT have "a full and fair opportunity" to present my position, ab initio, there have been no valid decisions as a matter of law, thus there have been no prior "adverse findings." No published law or regulation provides for disregard of the jurisdictional aspect cited by Carreno for a reviewer to have jurisdiction. This is thus a double jurisdictional point under 5 USC § 552.(a)(l)(C) - (D). Wherefore, review has not begun, as a matter of law.  Please cause it to begin.





H. Reprisal included false claims by TACOM EEO Officer Kenneth Adler that USACARA processing would occur. Same were made to obstruct my ability to seek redress, promising EEO investigation by USACARA (and even, due to TACOM fear of integrity of Army USACARA, assigning case out to Air Force USACARA equivalent in 1981!!), then after-the-fact by ex parte communications, cancelling same! Note that "a promise made without any intention of performing it [is] one of the forms of actual fraud," Langley v Rodriguez, 122 Cal 580; 55 P 406 (1898). The agency "extreme and outrageous . . . conduct [arises] from the abuse of a relationship which puts [the agency] in a position of actual or apparent authority . . . or gives [the agency] power to affect [appellant's] interests," McCahill v Commercial Ins Co, 179 Mich App 761, 768; 446 NW2d 579, 582 (1989). Falsification and fraud went so far as to include Deputy Commander Brig Gen. David Stallings pretending case review would occur. Pletten did "rely on what had been told him." Later, EEO Officer Adler or Legal Officer Emily Bacon, would ex parte cancel the review! including by Bacon's mid 1981 blatantly false pretext to Investigator Jonell Calloway that EEOC would do a hearing without investigation first occurring! She cited a hearing TACOM has never scheduled, and had and has no intention of ever scheduling at the time nor thereafter, another false "promise made without intention of performing it." (The claim that such would occur is an "estoppel" precluding TACOM from not doing it.)  Bishop v E. A. Strout Realty, 182 F2d 503, 505 (CA 4, 1950), shows that it is proper "to rely on what had been told him" "There is nothing in law or in reason which requires one to deal as though dealing with a liar or scoundrel, or that denies the protection of the law to the trustful who have been victimized by fraud . . . it was never any credit to the law to allow one who had defrauded another to defend on the ground that his own word should not have been believed," here TACOM's foreseeable "defense" that I should not have believed its brazenly lying officials. The review cancellations by TACOM were intended maliciously to obstruct justice, to demoralize me, to deny human dignity, to preclude making "informed choice," to terrorize the workforce at large that any violations and crimes including falsification, obstruction of justice, and mail fraud are OK and sustained at the highest levels, and to destroy ability to obtain review.





I. TACOM arranging ex parte for adjudicators including MSPB to themselves retaliate, to cover up the extortion by inventing a numer of corrective actions supposedly taken!! during the blatant ex parte communications era with adjudicators, and going to the extreme of publishing said falsehoods as a June 1981 decision 7 MSPR 13, citing corrective actions as already taken that TACOM had REFUSED to do! [EEOC confirms the falsehoods in its April 1983 decision, 83 FEOR 3046.] MSPB officials involved in that criminally fraudulent decision included Ersa Poston and Ronald Wertheim (soon a candidate for a judgeship).  When contacted, Wertheim treated his MSPB lying as a joke, confirming to me the ultra-necessity of avoiding MSPB as hopelessly corrupt, criminal, and hostile, and its applicable Chicago Office in particular, as per the notorious and blatant ultra-corruption and bribery in the judiciary there, as noted in the bribery scandal cases of "Operation Greylord," even the deeming of Chicago-area adjudicators as a criminal enterprise, US v Murphy, 768 F2d 1518, 1531 (CA 7, 1985) cert den 475 US 1012 (1986); US ex rel. Collins v Welborn, 868 F Supp 950, 990 (ND Ill, 1994); US v Maloney, 71 F3d 645 (CA7, 1995) cert den 519 US 927 (1996), and Bracy v Gramley, 520 US 899 (1997). See also Luteran v U.S., 93 F2d 295 (CA 8, 1937), "where proof of a conspiracy has been established a relatively slight amount of evidence connecting the defendant therewith is sufficient to sustain a verdict," p 398. "Participation in formation of the conspiracy is not essential to culpability if after it was formed the defendant aided or abetted it with an understanding of its purpose," and "where the defendant aided the conspirators knowing in a general way their purpose to break the law the jury may infer that he entered into an express or implied agreement with them," p 399. This includes evidence of some participation including having "heard and saw various other things which characterized the fraudulent conduct of the conspirators," p 399. "Every hypothesis of innocence is destroyed by his knowledge of the manner in which . . . conspirators had behaved throughout the afternoon," p 399. Here, the pattern of misconduct (including extortion, falsification, mail fraud) is not one "afternoon," but decades, in the face of my importuning. Note the parallel herein with the notorious New York Corruption situation, documented by the Knapp Commission Report on Police Corruption (1972) (while not all police are corrupt, those who are not, typically look the other way with respect to corrupt colleagues, so disciplinary actions and prosecutions are rare, and the public is thereby harmed, and individuals). Likewise, while perhaps not all TACOM officials and MSPB adjudicators and others whose hostile, outside-the-rule-of-law actions have occurred in this situation, are corrupt, so many are corrupt, that on a wide-scale basis, the civil service is intimidated, and individuals and the public are harmed. State of Kansas ex rel Johnston, State Attorney General v Foster, County Prosecutor, 3 P 534 (Kansas, 1884), upheld removal of a prosecutor for refusing to enforce a law. On appeal, the Court said that prosecutors must enforce laws regardless of personal desires and clamor of the law's opponents, for reasons including that the citizens who are for the law count on them doing so; 'mistake of law' is not a defense. The fired prosecutor appealed to the US Supreme Court, in Foster v Kansas ex rel. Johnston, 112 US 201 (1884), and 112 US 205 (1884). The U.S. Supreme Court upheld the removal of the prosecutor. Hee, there was a clear duty to enforce the pertinent rules, not violate them as TACOM did, and not aid and abet their violation as MSPB so clearly did. MSPB ignored the Johnston principles, allowed the firing of me the victim of the non-enforcement, vs the firing of the misconduct committing TACOM officials.  TACOM, by its ex parte means, well knew that MSPB would react thus, while reasonably believing that EEOC would not, so closed off the EEOC forum up-front, February 1980 on.  (If TACOM alleges innocence, "clean hands," in this, note that TACOM did not act with integrity to notify MSPB of the falsehoods, and also disregarded my July 1981 acceptance of same, and has not notified MSPB of the vacated reason for the ouster, the false inability to control PTS behavior claim refuted by TACOM itself April 1993. Thus the record corroborates that the ouster and MSPB actions-alleged-list had been ex parte devised with advance knowledge that MSPB would spurn my acceptance, and disregard any facts in my favor.  Worse, the perjurious mail-fraud list was cited to other adjudicators, to (i) show all the wonderful things TACOM had supposedly done 1979-1980, and to (ii) refute my credibility.)





J. Universal malice disregard of the pertinent rules, especially AR 1-8, and the implementing USACARA Report vs giving it deference (as agency interpretations of their own rules are to be treated, here, done by the agency's own USACARA) and treating it as final and binding under CPR 700.771, Spann v Gen. McKenna, 615 F2d 137 (CA 3, 1980), instead, fabricating accommodation as sole issue, even though I was ousted without notice retroactively, thus before I could raise the issue! When a lower echelon reviewer (local office, or arbitrator for example) is hostile to employee, precedents show MSPB has no problem saying such hostile analysis is OK!! but when a ruling is pro-whistleblower as in my case, not even mention of it!, showing, establishing, corroborating, the MSPB / adjudicator hatred of ("universal malice" against) whistleblowers is ultra-intense. Instead of mention, regard, deference and acceptance, they treat the USACARA Report as non-existing, and prefer to spout off their own theretical, weird, aberrant, bizarre, deviant, non-factual views on the rules, showing deliberate contemptuous disrespect for same, disrespect masked as interpretation, the farthest possible reaction contrary to the deference which is due USACARA interpreting the rule on Army's behalf with finality.





K. TACOM and alleged "adjudicators" (the ones into whose hostile forums TACOM coerced me, per TACOM intense refusal to allow normal review, by USACARA and EEOC, like others receive) had a pattern of blatantly defying, disregarding, flouting, ruling directly contrary to, ultra well-established BFOQ rules forming part of the "rule of law" notoriously known to ALL Americans from the 1950's-1960's Civil Rights Movement, and especially known in the personnel / human resources function, MSPB, OSC, and federal courts. Ultra-disregard of the basic BFOQ concept evidences ultra-hostile work environment crossing line into criminality, mail fraud and falsification. Pursuant to case law such as Nye v Parkway Bank & Trust Co, 114 Ill App 3d 272; 70 Ill Dec 40; 448 NE2d 918, 919 n 2 (1983), it is "highly irregular and inequitable to expect defendant [Pletten] to prepare a defense against accusations known to be untrue by the accuser [TACOM]." ALL personnel / human resources staff and adjudicators know that no BFOQ exists on-point (PTS is not a listed job requirement, says government and OPM data, and initial hiring document signed by TACOM's own Dr. Francis J. Holt, who contradicting his own prior position, rubber-stamped the subsequent ouster from the same occupation).





L. TACOM disregarded the fact of new evidence repeatedly surfacing even after TACOM may allege "advance notice" occurred, e.g., the changed SF-52 from non-fault to "fault" basis; negotiability claim after the fact by CPO Edward Hoover; allegation of self-application for disability retirement vs actual truth (done by persons with conflict of interest and given undue preference, ousting a competitor for promotion); subsequent smoking cessation; subsequent Gonzellas Williams letter verifying earlier ouster than TACOM had admitted.  Note CPO Edward Hoover's fabricating a union role, after-the-fact, without advance notice to me, denying me opportunity to reply and defend pre-decision, a claim made contrary to law, AR 1-8, and TACOM's own June 1979 legal office opinion on TACOM full authority to cease permitting PTS emissions--Hoover's after-the-factism contradiction fully accepted as valid by MSPB as per MSPB policy of going outside the notice to rule, per the "anything it takes" philosophy. All violates 5 USC § 7513.(b) and 5 CFR § 752.404(f) (constitutional due process rule) in which the latter shows, e.g., "In arriving at its decision, the agency shall not consider any reasons for action other than those specified in the notice of proposed action. . . ." When changes are later evidenced, reversal and starting anew is to occur. Shelton v EEOC, 357 F Supp 3, 8 (D Wash, 1973) aff' 416 US 976 (1974).





M. The alleged MSPB adjudicators into whose notoriously corrupt and hostile forum I was coerced, did not inform me of burden of proof and standards, Burge v Dept of Air Force, 82 MSPR 75 (1999); Tierney v Dept of Justice, 89 MSPR 354 (2001) (showing MSPB knows to do this at least in some subsequent cases), here cited for the narrow purpose of showing that MSPB knows better than to ignore standards of proof! Clearly MSPB per ex parte pre-appeal contact and advisory with TACOM, had pre-determined to follow NO standards of proof, as EEOC verified, 83 FEOR 3046 (April 1983). And MSPB had ex parte pre-determined to fabricate whatever story would look good on the record without regard for truth or falsity, evidencing intent, intense motive, and premeditation to commit mail fraud and falsification, i.e., for me unlike for others, standards of proof were set aside.





N. TACOM arguing that I have failed to prove my case, when at all times, TACOM was opposing, resisting, obstructing my doing so; cf. People v Rich, 414 Mich 961; 326 NW2d 824 (1982) (improper to argue implications of failure to produce witnesses when had opposed efforts to subpena them, here all efforts, not just on witnesses) 





O. Instead of helping, as EEOC had contemplated in its March 1991 decision in the matter of Jeffrey McLean as herein cited, the higher command, Army Materiel Command, gave false or misleading information to Congress, e.g., Senator Levin, i.e., refusing to acknowledge that different concepts ("fault" vs non-fault separation) CANNOT properly be used as interchangeable terms, but that one or the other must be made clear BEFORE decision, i.e., in the "advance notice" so as to enable defense, especially noteworthy here as the SF-52 from management requested non-"fault" ouster, whereas the after-the-fact no-notice alteration SF-50 as issued was for a ":fault" ouster 





P. Creating hostile work environment for supportive coworkers, e.g., those cited in newspaper complaints, Dennis Tracy, Mary Ellen Dukes, Zebadah Slaughter, etc., ostracizing the latter, treating her as criminal, calling her a 'nut,' etc., for her reporting ventilation problems in her assigned Building (#1). The widespread nature of the employee complaints corroborate ventilation problems installation-wide, not just in my Building 230 assigned workplace, thus further enraging TACOM as creating a precedent of compliance in ANY workplace, e.g., mine due to my personnel expertise in obtaining a favorable USACARA Report on this subject matter, would foreseeably snowball as other, perhaps all, non-PTS emitting employees would become aware and in turn want compliance to be in their workplaces (as the USACARA Report alluded to).





Q. Retaliation due to the nature of the content of my safety reports, EEOC complaints, grievances (officials' personal hazard-causing addictive behavior, posing a hazard first to self and subsequently to others). See the many Surgeon General Reports; and my "Smoking as Hazardous Conduct" Vol 86 New York St J Med (Issue 9) p 493 (Sep 1986).





R. TACOM retaliation for my intention to or actually testifying for others contemplating or actually filing cases, e.g., Dennis Tracy, Mary Ellen Dukes, Zebadah Slaughter (of TACOM) and Richard Arnold (of Fort Gordon, Georgia), in his EEOC case, as verifying TACOM rage that I would do so for any/all TACOMers, as per announced intention to aid other employees in their grievance, EEOC, and like proceedings to seek and obtain effective redress based on my expertise in the subject matter.





S. TACOM has clear and intense motive to retaliate as management officials were themselves personally violating the rules at issue, and thus subject to discipline including but not limited to removal for themselves not having met initial hiring criteria and/or having falsified original hiring documents, as well as the immediate and continuing subsequent violations, both on subject matter, and on their violating the rules for allowing review to occur, exponentially violating in other words, as violations flowed and spread, showing "genuine nexus" between subject matter issue and the ouster on the SAME "subject matter" as my disclosures on PTS issues.  Retaliatory motive would be clear and intense even if NO notice / charges / specifics / rights-notice / rights-obstruction/ "informed choice" denial and obstruction / BFOQ lacking / confessions-against-interest / jurisdictional-issue / contradictions / USACARA and EEOC and OPM and MESC decisions opposing TACOM actions in whole or in part, had occurred, but with any/all these individually and severally, intense retaliatory motive is ultra-evident.  This is especially so in view of pertinent case law and references, e.g., Herzbrun v Milwaukee County, 338 F Supp 736, 738 (ED Wis, 1972). ("[T]he threat of being fired is equal to the threat of most minor and some not so minor criminal sanctions"); Tenorio v N.L.R.B., 680 F2d 598, 602 (CA 9, 1982) (Discharge, "the most serious sanction an employer can impose," requires "special care in handling" review). Richard Peres, Dealing with Employment Discrimination (New York: McGraw-Hill, 1978), says "losing one's job is the most adverse thing that can happen to a person in the employment world. A discharge for cause can have damaging and lasting consequences in one's career and life."





T. TACOM retaliated by refusing to give me any assignments March 17 1980 and thereafter; indeed, taking away all those I had, farming them out to co-workers (TACOM treated me tantamount to the recent case of a Warren whistleblower being told to 'count office ceiling tiles!' and nothing else! but worse, telling me to go away.  That is an order I have followed (and appealed without success, per the agency cutting me off from EEOC review forum), in essence, TACOM is punishing for having followed instructions to get out.





U. TACOM is denying me the rights notice, that in criminal law analogy, is called "Miranda" rights. When there has been such a violation, the remedy is well-established. Shamefully, TACOM treats me as a whistleblower, worse in regard to notice than criminal suspects.  (Civil serants accused of crimes, are not summarily ousted! but generally placed on paid leave pending investigation and outcome!)





V. TACOM obstructs all my review efforts (uninformed though they be, by TACOM's own causatgion) by contradictorily claiming that I and adjudicators must follow every rule, while it (TACOM) can ignore as many, do as many violations as it wishes. TACOM in essence says that all rules are binding on me and reviewers, but none on it. TACOM's intent is to cause the situation wherein the tACOM-caused 24 years of my uninformed review efforts mean review is over.  This type approach is itself retaliation. It blatant disregards the fact that review can never have begun as a matter of law, absent constitutional due process and condition precedents for same first being in place, i.e., having been met, including notice of charges so I'll know what I am to defend against, and "informed choice" and uncoerced choice of review forums thereafter.  TACOM is retaliating by objecting to review beginning  in essence on a blank slate. Per 'rule of law' on no 'informed choice,' no review has ever begun of my situation as a matter of law.





W. TACOM's ex parte contacts with deciding officials so as to reference non-existent rules/events so as to destroy credibility (e.g., on authority, duty location, BFOQ, on 'accomodations' never done, self-application, even Probate Court claims!), using false claims outside rule of well-established law (e.g., notice, BFOQ, nuisance, negotiability), claims so often made outside the record! thus blatantly per ex parte communications.





X. TACOM forcing me into the notoriously hostile OSC / MSPB process, and from thence, into hostile courts without my chosen administrative process having first occurred. TACOM is enraged at my continuing review efforts as TACOM knows they have surfaced hithertho unkown aspects of the many reprisals herein cited, as TACOM has fabricated varying stories over the years.  TACOM's purpose is obstruct my ability to present case at all; and it uses derogatory and hostile claims to destroy my credibility and reputation as part of its unlawful acts to prevent review.





Y. TACOM issuing false performance appraisals -- a prohibited personnel practice as conferring improper benefit--to managers such as Edward Hoover, Archie Grimmett, William O'Connor, Robert Shirock, Kenneth Adler, and their successors, despite their discrimination and violating rules (unsatisfactory in EEO was defined to mean unsatisfactory job performance). Yet this basic principle was blatantly disregarded, allowing these people notoriously hostile to EEO to remain on the roles and continue their abusiveness and refusal to abide by the many rules cited herein, including but not limited to the AR 1-8 guidance, and the USACARA Report which is mandatory to obey, pursuant to the agency's CPR 700.771 and Spann v Gen. McKenna, 615 F2d 137 (CA 3, 1980). Precedent supports firing, not retaining, such managers (not firing the employee reporting the violations and mismanagement!), e.g., Caraco Ship Supply v Amalgd Meat Cutters & Butcher Wrkmn of N Am, 64-3 Lab Arb Awards (CCH) § 8961 (1964) (supervisor had permitted employees to smoke; supervisor was fired for his dereliction of duty, not any whistleblowing employee; TACOM managers were doing same type misconduct.)





Z. The agency even having hired these people was in violation of hiring guidelines against hiring persons with behavior dangerous to self, others, and property). Pursuant to Ryder v U.S., 515 US 177 (1995), an appellant can challenge the validity of an adjudicator's appointment (that is my plan once review is allowed to begin, applying pertinent case principles of, e.g., McIntosh v Milano, 168 N J Super 466; 403 A2d 500 (1979) (dangerousness); Caprin v Harris, 511 F Supp 589, 590 n 3 (D ND NY, 8 April 1981) (DSM-III) and Spencer v Toussaint, 408 F Supp 1067 (ED Mich, 1976) (who to not hire). Pursuant to the "negligent hiring" concept, personnel/human resources professionals do not ascertain merely absence of bad data on an applicant such as Emily Bacon, Edward Hoover, Luther Santiful, Stanley Kelley, Jr., John Benacquista, Archie Grimmett, etc. were, but also affirmative positive statements of non-dangerousness. This is a basic hiring principle. See William J. Connelly, "How To Navigate The River Of Legal Liability When Hiring," 63 Personnel Journal 32-46, especially p 38 (March 1986).  Various basics of hiring guidance, e.g., 29 USC § 706.(7)(B); and Civil Service Standard Form 78, Certificate of Medical Examination, preclude hiring persons with "medical findings which . . . would make him a hazard to himself or others," e.g., smokers. See also the long line of case law and analyses against negligent hiring. Bowen v Illinois C R Co, 136 F 306 (CA 8, 1905); 70 LRA 915 (1905); Duckworth v Apostalis, 208 F 936 (D C Tenn, 1913); Davidson v Chinese Republic Restaurant Co, 201 Mich 389; 167 NW 967 (1928); Annot., 40 ALR 1215 (1926); 114 ALR 1041 (1938); Bradley v Stevens, 329 Mich 556; 46 NW2d 382 (1951); Annot., 34 ALR2d 372, 390 9 (1954); 29 Am Jur 267; Hersh v Kentfield Builders, 385 Mich 410; 189 NW2d 286 (1971); Samson v Saginaw, 393 Mich 393; 224 NW2d 843 (1975); Ponticas v KMS Investments, 331 NW2d 907 (Minn, 1983); Welsh Mfg v Pinkerton's, Inc, 474 A2d 436 (1984); 44 ALR4th 603 (1984); Kurtz v City of North Miami, 653 So 2d 1025 (Fla, 1995); Fortunoff F J & S, Inc v N Y St Div of H R, 227 App Div 2d 557; 642 NYS2d 710 (1996); Stevens v Inland Waters, Inc, 220 Mich App 212; 559 NW2d 61 (1996), etc.





AA. TACOMers with personal motives, even conflict of interest, applied to forcibly retire me based on the personal animus of  Edward Hoover, with Carma Averhart, and Thomas Alef for their personal reasons (smoking/promotion quid pro quo, to result in personal gain or advantage to another, themselves, a "prohibited personnel practice" in violation 5 USC § 2302, not to mention the many other violations herein cited).  Retirement cannot be "accomplished through the violation of a controlling regulation," Piccone v. U.S., 186 Ct Cl. 752, 762, 407 F2d 866, 871 (1969). Violations are blatant, no BFOQ re PTS, no job deficiency or misconduct of record, no meeting of any of OPM's criteria. Purpose of the application included blackmail and extortion.  Also, the Averhart-Alef conflict of interest in ousting me confers a benefit to them in violation of 'prohibited personnel practice ban,' by eliminating competitor (me) from promotion pool.  In addition, no appraisals ever cited any deficiency by me, no charged ever cited violation by me, as TACOM resolved to not issue me any performance reviews, after supervisor Jeremiah Kator resisted management's hostility and approved my Within-Grade Increase for June 1980. If TACOM had ANY actual or perceived legitimate basis for the application, that instantly voids the ouster, as such reasons have not been told me in a 5 USC § 7513(b) notice.  The ouster process included disregarding OPM's ruling for me (rejecting the Averhart-Alef-Hoover application), refusing me RTD on my prompt RTD request; refusing me review of the denial; and deleting me from the career roster and all promotion consideration. Deleting me from the latter has the known foreseeable natural and probable consequences effect of increasing promoteabiltiy for persons involved in ouster, e.g., Carma Averhart, Thomas J. Alef, i.e., a  prohibited personnel practice, here including conflict of interest. Subsequent blackmail against me with respect to the subject, including adjudicators going outside the facts and record (showing ex parte contacts) establishes TACOM's real purpose, retaliation, blackmail, mail fraud. TACOM further retaliated by refusal to process my requests for review of the application, including in EEOC forum--which review has never yet occurred, and which I again request, as a "continuing demand."  Moreover, when OPM rejected the Averhart-Alef-Hoover application, TACOM refused to let me RTD even then, despite my request, a reaction contrary to FPM Suppl. 752-1.S1-6c(4)(d) (4 Feb 1972) in turn citing e.g., 38 Comp Gen 203; and  41 Comp Gen 774.





BB. Refusing to implement (in the normal way, by investigation and hearing) EEOC Decisions, e.g., of February 1982 and March 1983, each of which had ordered case processing within 30 days.  No discipline was imposed against any TACOM official for the non-compliance, instead, falsified performance appraisls were issued them, with TACOM operating as a 18 USC § 1961 "continuing criminal enterprise" to obstruct justice, which would have included, at minimum, prison sentences for the various crimes herein cited, including the falsification of appraisals after the EEOC decisions.  If appraising an EEO Officer blatantly violating, ignoring, defying, spitting on EEOC orders, as "satisfactory" in EEO is not falsification in violation of at least 18 USC § 1001 (the first criminal law TACOM taught me, in 1969), and mail fraud, nothing is.





CC. The retaliation of diverting attention off ouster misprocessing/violations, onto one issue, the theoretical meaning of AR 1-8, apart from actual local bad ventilation situation, contrary to regulation intent; ignoring/refusing to acknowledge other pertinent rules, and especially the substance of the actual case at issue, ouster contrary to rules of law, as herein delineated, a separate matter from theoretical issues of AR 1-8.





DD. Fitness of duty (FFD) psychiatric exam ordered contary to precedent [Standard Knapp Div v IAM, 80 Labor Arb Rpts 833 (Cahn, 1968)]. If TACOM had ANY actual or perceived legitimate basis for the application, that instantly voids the ouster, as such reasons have not been told me in a 5 USC § 7513(b) notice.  Not also the further reprisal: after TACOM had chosen the medical speciality, TACOM's overruled the exam's favorable results! by having the medical-malpractice-committing TACOM Doctor Francis J. Holt overrule the RTD recommendation result by Dr. David Schwartz. FFD's are not appealable to MSPB, says Caddell v Dept of Justice, 52 MSPR 529 (1992), so with TACOM refusing me EEO review as requested, TACOM intent is clear to forever preclude review on merits of this ultra-reprisal, despite my "continuing demand" for same to occur.





EE. TACOM refusing to abide by examining doctor findings, including those by US Dept of Labor. Case law shows examining doctor findings have priority over those of non-examining doctors [only TACOM's subservient malpractice-committing Dr. Holt ever went along with Benacquista's overruling the medical data), a principle TACOM, MSPB, etc. adjudicators all disregarded at TACOM behest, further corroborative of the fact TACOM forced me out of the more honest EEOC administrative system, into what can only be considered the others' ultra-corrupt and hostile "universal malice" processes.  Instead, all followed the medical-malpractice committing TACOM Dr. Holt, the rubber-stamp, contrary to case law such as Veal v Califano, 610 F2d 495, 497 (CA 8, 1979); Allen v Weinberger, 552 F2d 781, 786 (CA 7, 1977); Landess v Weinberger, 490 F2d 1187, 1190 (CA 8, 1974).





FF Compounding incidents to obstruct review process, rushing from one reprisal to the next without allowing review process of prior acts to occur, to obstruct review, including how one favorable decision after another, would have built on each other, and, in principle, have prevented subsequent steps from occurring.  Example: Had the USACARA Report been implemented, or had TACOM notified me of rights, or had the seriatim suspension, forced leave, forced LWOP been reviewed in my chosen forum and timely so, each of the following subsequent ouster events would have been precluded.  Court precedents cite principles that would preclude doing the ever-multiplying doubling-up that TACOM has done, e.g., Piccone v U.S., 186 Ct Cl 752; 407 F2d 866 (1969) (separation of an employee for disability is premature while appeal in process); Family Independence Agency v Melissa Kucharski, 468 Mich. 202; 661 NW2d 216; Lexis 939 (2003) (contradictory evidence; premature rights termination "not permitted to proceed . . . where the parent's appeal remains pending" -- here, mine obviously were, and TACOM was criminally fraudulently pretending to do processing of same!).





GG. TACOM, etc. fabricating the bizarre notion that none of the rules should be applied but only the affirmative-defense, BFOQ-related notion of "accommodation," contrary to case law such as Sethy v Alameda County Water District, 545 F2d 1157, 1162 (CA 9, 1976), later 602 F2d 894 (1978), cert den 444 US 1046 (1980) (a view that rules should not be implemented except "through the procedural hoops for" "reasonable accommodation" is inappropriate). An "accommodation" “affirmative defense” relates of necessity to an extant advance notice of charges that would make such relevant, Bolling v Navy, 43 MSPR 668, 671 (1990); Brown v Postal Service, 47 MSPR 50, 59 (1991). Here, no such notice exists (not even alleged till the last second), so the “accommodation” issue is a scam, a fraud, and was and is known at all times, to all adjudicators to have been such, witness their careful avoidance of mention of prerequisites including but not limited to in-employment matter, job description duties of record, BFOQ, notice, and jurisdiction principles. (And genuine foreseeable affirmative defenses of mine, duress, coercion, estoppel, etc., are ignored!) Theirs is a "result-oriented" approach. To cite a prominently recognizable example (as distinct from the mere 'theoretical'), being "result-oriented" was a charge made against Judge Robert Bork at time of his nomination for U.S. Supreme Court. "'He is ruthlessly result-oriented,' complains one attorney, who accuses Bork of deciding the outcome of cases in advance even if it requires misstating arguments presented to him," alleges Ted Gest, "A New Majority Moves to the Right," 103 US News & World Report (Issue #2) pp 28-29 (13 July 1987). (This example is cited not to criticize Judge Bork)  The bottom line in my case is, the so-called adjudicators make that example look like mild! They decided on outcome in advance, and made up whatever story or fabrication that would fit their predetermined decision.





HH. TACOM refusing to allow review even after the marked change in circumstances, its sudden "ability" to do what it had claimed it could not do, cease permitting PTS behavior. In essence, TACOM vacated the ouster basis, the pretense of no authority to cease permitting hazardous personal behavior (smoking), suddenly vacated by orders in early 1993! showing that cessation-of-permission could have been done all along, classic fraud having denied the ability for well over a decade!  See examples of vacated "reasons" in FPM Supp 752-1.S7-3c((2); and fraud precedents such as Hazel-Atlas Glass Co v Hartford Empire Co, 322 US 238, 244 (1944).  Here, TACOM has a policy and practice of committing fraud on all involved, telling varied stories, using contradictions, whatever at the moment is useful to "justify" the violations and ouster. Also see the concept of such "intervening change in the legal atmosphere that it renders the bar of collateral estoppel [purported prior review] inapplicable in this case," Texaco Inc v U.S., 217 Ct Cl 416; 579 F2d 614 (1978), cited in Wilson v Turnage, 791 F2d 157 (CA Fed, 1986) (a federal employee case). This would apply not only to the cessation of permission of PTS behavior, but also to forced leave, as subsequent precedents emphatically preclude doing this without notice, without due process, and contrary to rules.  The "vacated reason" concept applies even if all other aspects had been done correctly, advance notice, specificity, right to defend and reply, no rule violations, informed choice notice, no obstruction, etc., etc.





II. Disregarding the basic legal concept of "essential element," any key controlling fact that "necessarily renders all of the other facts immaterial." Celotex Corp v Catrett, 477 US 317, 323 (1986). Here, each of the many aspects (no advance notice, no specifics, no due process, no right to defend and reply, no informed choice, violation of agency's own rules, EEOC forum closed off February 1980 to present, disregard of EEOC processing orders, cancelling 1981 USACARA investigation in process, fraudulent claims that review would occur but which was not intended, etc., etc), each is such an "essential element," that warrants long ago ruling in my favor.





JJ. Disregarding the basic concept that rights are for the here and now, where the requesting party IS, to be enforced and obeyed then and there. It is not acceptable take the anti-rule of law position of, 'if you don't like it here, go away.' See, e.g., State of Missouri ex rel Gaines v Canada, 305 US 33 (1938); Watson v City of Memphis, 373 US 526, 533 (1963); Alford v City of Newport News, 220 Va 584; 260 SE2d 241 (21 Nov 1979).





KK. Disregarding the basic concept that "A tortfeasor has a duty to assist his victim. The initial injury creates a duty of aid and the breach of the duty is an independent tort. See Restatement (Second) of Torts, § 322, Comment c (1965)." Taylor v Meirick, 712 F2d 1112, 1117 (CA 7, 1983). Here, TACOM violated numerous rules and laws as shown herein, and even EEOC orders, and its own word, creating multiple duties to aid, but TACOM refuses to aid.





LL. Disregarding  the well-settled principle that an agency is bound by the regulations it has promulgated, even though absent such regulations the agency could have exercised its authority to take the same actions on another basis, and that the agency must abide by its regulations as written until it rescinds or amends them, see, e.g., Service v Dulles, 354 US 363 (1957); Watson v Army, 162 F Supp 755 (1958); Vitarelli v Seaton, 359 US 535, 539-40 (1959); Piccone v U.S., 186 Ct Cl 752; 407 F2d 866, 871 (1969); U.S. v. Nixon, 418 U.S. 683, 695-696 (1974).  A basic example is the forced LWOP ban rule, TACOMR 600-5.14-27 et seq.  Once TACOM banned forced LWOP, emphasizing voluntary request, it canot defy its own rule.





MM. Disregarding the related concept of "clean hands," here, TACOM's demanding the benefit of provisions favorable to its side, while ignoring the conditions and duties which it is to perform, obey, or enforce. Case law shows to not aid such a misconduct-committing party, e.g., BTC v Norton CMC, 25 F Supp 968, 969 (1938); Buckman v HMA, 190 Or 154; 223 P2d 172, 175 (1950); Robinson v American Broadcasting Companies, 328 F Supp 421, 422, 424-426 (D ED Ky, 1970) aff'd 441 F2d 1396, 1399 (CA 6, 1971),  "A man who hears a hundred 'yeses' [e.g., the rules here presuming they'll be obeyed, and the false claims review will occur] for each 'no,' [the exceptional circumstance of the rules being flouted, and promised review not occurring] when the actual odds lie heavily the other way, cannot be realistically deemed adequately informed." "Any time the uncleanness of . . . hands . . . comes to the attention of [adjudictor, same] is required to act sua sponte . . . on account of the public interest . . . for the advancement of right and natural justice." And, Glus v Eastern District Terminal, 359 US 231, 232 (1959), says a party cannot take advantage of its own wrongdoing at the starting point of a process, as TACOM is doing here in so many ways.  Here, for example, I sought EEOC  review long prior to my subsequent contact with MSPB, hence MSPB could not have jurisdiction, Carreno v Dept of Army, 22 MSPR 515, 518 (1984). And honoring even legitimately obtained prior decisions only applies if the party (here, me) had already had both (a) "a full and fair opportunity" for me to have presented my case, and (b) prior "adverse findings," U.S. v Utah Construction & Mining Co, 384 US 394, 422 (1966).  Since it is ultra clear that 


TACOM made sure that I would NOT have "a full and fair opportunity" to present my position, ab initio, there have been no valid decisions as a matter of law, thus there have been no prior "adverse findings." Wherefore, review has not begun, as a matter of law.





NN. Due to the ouster being so savage, without notice, no opportunity such as real offenders (even though accused of crime) have, to obtain personal effects from desk, was provided.  In essence, Personnel Officer Edward Hoover stole them in violation of criminal law.





OO. Disregard of basic accountability principles, that the 'commander is responsible for all his staff do and don't do.'  Management and officials up to highest levels, allowed, even caused the "hostile work environment," including the crimes herein shown, yet none has had consequences, notwithstanding pertinent precedents such as Caraco Ship Supply v Amalgd Meat Cutters & Butcher Wrkmn of N Am, 64-3 Lab Arb Awards (CCH) § 8961 (1964); Application of Yamashita, 327 US 1 (1946); Application of Honmo, 327 US 759 (1946); The Nurnberg Trial, 6 FRD 69 (1946) (cases holding government officials liable for acts of subordinates), and U. S. v Park, 421 US 658 (1975) (citing apt principles including: "The requirements of foresight and vigilance imposed on responsible corporate agents are beyond question demanding, and perhaps onerous, but they are no more stringent than the public has a right to expect of those who voluntarily assume positions of authority in . . . enterprises whose services and products affect . . . health and well-being . . . " "The accused [official], if he does not will the violation, usually is in a position to prevent it. . . ." Each "had, by reason of his position . . . responsibility and authority either to prevent in the first instance, or promptly to correct, the violation complained of, and . . . failed to do so.")





PP. Bottom line: Despite my enormous efforts to obtain review concerning the foregoing violations, no EEO Counselor including Jeffrey McLain has dealt with, or will foreseeably ever deal with the situation; and even when USACARA investigations are supposedly arranged or commenced, TACOM has ex parte cancelled them. The total situation is a pattern the worst protracted likely to be ever seen, over decades, including destroying career, finances, family, reputation, human dignity. So ultra many reprisals occurred that it is difficult/impossible to list them all; more could be listed.





2.	Who was the reprising official? Give full name; title; command; address; telephone; fax (and e-mail, if possible).


 


Jeffrey McLean, EEO Counselor; John J. Benacquista, Chief of Staff; Edward Hoover, Personnel Officer, Archie Grimmitt, Personnel Officer; Kenneth Adler, EEO Office; Emily Bacon, Attorney; Oscar Decker, CG; David Stallings, DCG, all of US Army Tank-Automotive Command, 28251 Van Dyke, Warren, MI 48090, TACOM 586-574-5000





Unknown name(s), EEO Officer, AMC EEO Office, 5001 Eisenhower Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia, for not abiding by the March 1991 EEOC decision, nor ever intervening to end the violations and refusal of review cited herein.





Col. Edward D. Ball, Chief, AMC Congressional Liasion Office, 5001 Eisenhower Avenue, Alexandria, VA 22333-0001, concerning his misleading letter to Senator Carl Levin.  Doing that instead of assisting to deal with the notorious pattern is clear reprisal.





All TACOM EEO Officer and Counselors, 1979, to present, to verify no review of the ouster process was done like is done for others (meaning not only no counseling but also no investigation and no hearing). Their duty is to "counsel," aid in identifying issues, write reports summarizing same, including the pattern of violations herein cited, recommend case processing in their reports, and EEO Officers have a duty to assure that the EEO system is functioning, not being obstructed as here for so inordinate a period.)





Others as evident herein.





Disclosure





2.	When did you communicate - prior to the above listed Reprisal - a (1) violation of rule, law and/or regulation; (2) an act of gross waste or mismanagement; (3) an abuse of discretion; and/or (4) an condition of substantial risk to public health and safety?





                      all four						Date:  May-June  /     / 1979


continuing to present as additional incidents arise  Examples: The initial safety and health report, resulting in theory view of AR 1-8; so I filed subsequent reports when, e.g., ventilation was off, as per AR 1-8 intent that local action be tailored to local ventilation; then to Dept of Army  Inspector General in Nov 1979; and on reprisals, to EEO office starting about September 1979 after derogatory article in TACOM media; to USACARA re the safety and health violations; to higher levels of management and EEO, re the non-implementation; then reported the cut-off of access to local EEO office, leading to 23 Feb 1982 EEOC verifying decision; to EEO, USACARA, and lastly to MSPB and courts (when forced by TACOM ultra refusal to allow normal review like others receive), re the ouster; and so on, reprisal after reprisal, especially as they blatantly violated precedents and rules (such as on the FFD exam and the forced LWOP); filed to Michigan Unemployment Office re the ouster, receiving favorable ruling and unemployment compensation over TACOM vehement objections on the pretense of my being too disabled! (which MUO could see was not true as I could both speak and write, the essence of my job duties); to OPM re the unwarranted disability application by C Averhart, T Alef, and E Hoover against me contrary to BFOQ criteria and OPM guidelines; and so on. To TACOM Security, and to CID, re the extortion, mail frauds, fabricated claims. And of course, the numerous violations as time went on, to numerous officials, thus additional subsequent reprisals arose.





3.	To whom did you communicate the matter, above, and what was the substance of the communication?





See above, specific names include but are not limited to Jeremiah Kator, Robert Shirock, Archie Grimmett, Edward Hoover, Francis Holt, Edwin Braun, citing the widespread violation of AR 1-8, 32 CFR § 203 and related rules, endangering workforce as whole, not just my coworker Evelyn Bertram and myself, in matter leading to employee deaths, e.g., coworker Ronald Adams. All coworkers were aware, and in essence, the total workforce due to the newspaper derogatroy comments, and later media reports of the bizarre TACOM ouster for such an outlandish reason. Thereafter, when ouster process occurred, to EEO Counselors and Officers (to the extent allowed), to EEOC, MSPB, DOJ, etc., citing the then known violations at the time. The ex parte communications would of course be learned of later (sometimes decade or more!), and the invented claims, as per TACOM policy of not stating, but rather concealing, actual facts and reasons.





4.	Is the matter you reported within the scope of your Position Description?  Explain.





A. No. Position Classification Specialists evaluate organizations and jobs for structural and pay setting purposes.





B. AR 385-10 does tell all employees to report hazards; and IG rules provide for disclosures to it, and grievance and EEO rules provide for case processing, but strictly speaking, an employee doing same is doing a non-job description function. As a job description writer, I have not just lay but expert, GS-12, knowledge on this aspect. And NO job description provides for dealing with the pattern of abuses, crimes, extortion, review rights denial, subjected to.





C. For example, analysis of case law is not a function of Position Classification function. See, e.g., pertinent precedents such as refuting TACOM's obstinate insistence on segregation as a "solution" even though same is unconstitutional, e.g., Alford v City of Newport News, 220 Va 584; 260 SE2d 241 (1979) (non-smoking areas are unconstitutional when checkerboard style as not in fact protective); cf. Opinions of Michigan Attorney General 1987-1988, No. 6460, pp 167-171, 1987 Michigan Register 366 (25 Aug 1987) (taking "checkerboard style" action does not achieve genuine safety); Dept of Health, Educ and Welfare, Social Security Admin v AFGE Local 1923, 82-1 Lab Arb Awards (CCH) § 8206 (DC, 1982), holding that a non-checkboard PTS behavior cessation-of-permission was mandatory, to provide a safe workplace for one non-consenting-to-the-hazard employee; and Honeywell Inc v Int'l Ass'n of Machinists & Aerospace Workers, 92 Lab Arb (BNA) 181 (Fla, 1989) (identifying PTS behavior as dangerous to nonsmokers, and not a benefit but a detriment to smokers); Todd v Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp, 924 F Supp 59 (WD La,1996) (admission that tobacco dangerousness is obvious); Perez v Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corp, 967 F Supp 920 (SD Texas, 1997) (tobacco is inherently dangerous and so known); Banzhaf v F.C.C. 132 US App DC 14, 29; 405 F2d 1082, 1097 (1968) cert den 396 US 842 (1969) upheld the concept of cigarettes' universal deleteriousness: "The danger cigarettes . . . pose to health is, among others, a danger to life itself . . . a danger inherent in the normal use of the product, not one merely associated with its abuse or dependent on intervening fortuitous events. It threatens a substantial body of the population, not merely a peculiarly susceptible fringe group." Note judicial notice of cigarettes' "inherent" deleteriousness in Austin v State, 101 Tenn 563; 566-7; 48 SW 305, 306; 70 Am St Rep 703 (1898) aff'd 179 US 343 (1900), citing the Army not enlsiting smokers in War of 1898. No adjudicator finds solution to be TACOM's bizarre issuance of a face mask! itself a reprisal as distinct from genuine effort to get the ventilation system working.





D. Moreover, once it became apparent that TACOM could get away with firing an employee (me) for reporting safety hazard, foreseeably as a natural and probable consequence, an employee was killed at its General Dynamics Tank Plant, with criminal litigation resulting, e.g., People v General Dynamics Land Systems Division, 175 Mich App 701; 438 NW2d 359 (1989) lv app den 435 Mich 860 (1990); and Intl Un, UAW v General Dynamics Land Sys Div, 259 US App DC 369; 815 F2d 1570 (1987) cert den 484 US 976 (1987) (upholding my position on employer duty to obey both specific numeric and general safety rules). Filing criminal charges for safety violations is not a classifier's function.  Though I had been appointed "Crime Prevention Officer," as an extra duty, the filing of criminal charges had never been identified as a job duty; and the job description had not been amended to say so.





E. The term for something foreseeable is "natural and probable consequence," meaning, events that "happen so frequently . . . that . . . they may be expected [intended, foreseen] to happen again." 1979 ed., Page 925. "Intent" refers to the objective natural and probable consequences. "A person [agency, court] is presumed to intend the natural and probable consequences of his [its] voluntary acts." Black's Law Dictionary,  5th ed., p 1067. One "is not required in crimes to prove that a defendant intended the precise consequences of his act and his criminal intent can be inferred from his act." Researching law dictionaries and precedents is not Classifier function.





F. EEO writer Richard Peres, Dealing with Employment Discrimination (New York: McGraw-Hill, 1978), p 44, says "we very seldom find a resolution of a board of directors" to discriminate, so investigators go by "circumstantial evidence and inferences."  Per  Buttrick v Snyder, 236 Mich 300; 210 NW 311, 312-313 (1926), “While it is true that a verdict may not rest upon bare conjecture . . . it is also true that a finding as to a particular fact may be based upon inferences fairly drawn from other facts established by proof. . . . The reasonable inferences which may be drawn from the affirmative facts proven are evidence, and not presumptions.” (Classifiers' job descriptions do not include the making of analyses of these types.) 





Reasonableness





5.	On what authorities did you rely for your belief that some wrong-doing was occurring?  Cite specific sections of Congressional statutes, agency rules or directives, or handbooks and guides used in your workplace.





A. AR 1-8, DOD Instruction 6015.18, 32 CFR § 203, and all listed on the various disclosures in the refview attempts cited herein; co-worker complaints, TACOM high sick leave use above DA guidance, coworker deaths, background as 6 year Chairman of TACOM's CWFC, 5 USC § 7902.(d), court precedents such as Shimp v N J Bell Tele Co, 145 N J Super 516; 368 A2d 408 (1976) the immediate case that had given risen to DOD Inst 6015.18; 32 CFR 203 Re retaliation, and jurisdiction etc. aspects, 5 USC § 7513, 5 USC § 552a, MCL §750.27, MSA § 28.216, precedents such as Siemering v Siemering, 95 Wis 2d 111, 115; 288 NW2d 881, 883 (Wis App, 1980) (the "condition precedent [proper document] not having been met, the action was never commenced"); Star Scientific, Inc v R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co, 174 F Supp 2d 388, 392 (col 2) (D Md, 19 Nov 2001) (later events such as TACOM will cite do not create jurisdiction when lacking at filing); Basinger v OPM, 5 MSPB 210 (1981) says action "cannot be effected if there is a lack of compliance with departmental regulations"); TACOM Reg 600-5,14-27 et seq expressly banning forced LWOP; federal laws such as 18 USC § 1961 against extortion, mail fraud, etc., and related State of Michigan laws. 





B. Rules must not be seen in a vacuum or only theoretically, as has been reprisal practice against me. For example, Army Regulation 385-10.3-5a. and b. has words "emphasizing personnel responsibility for making . . . reports" "of unsafe or unhealthful conditions." TACOM's own Dr. Francis J. Holt, when asked, admits against interest the bad TACOM ventilation system and impact: ". . . mechanical failures happen all the time." (Deposition, page 25). "And there's a hazard for all these other people. Isn't that also true? Yes. Yes. "Have you been asked--"People smoking in their vicinity is hazardous to them."  Even 5/23/82, TACOM had not yet begun to obey 32 CFR § 203  nor 5 USC § 7902(d). Also, note that the19 June 1979 legal office memo written by TACOM attorney Susan Lewandowski for TACOM Chief Counsel Richard Tarnas cited agency full authority which in turn relied on AR 1-8, and was upheld by USACARA citing AR 600-20.2-1 in addition, all of which the alleged "adjudicators" carefully made sure to never mention! in their spouting off on the only one regulation (AR 1-8) they'd acknowledge, and that only theoretically, corruptly, maliciously without reference to the local actual ventilation situation so thoroughly documented.





C. Note that the underlying DOD Instruction 6015.18, 32 § CFR 203 was issued pursuant to 4000 years of law and precedents.  Ali I did was in context of the Re Bertram, OWCP File No. A9-190131 (January 1977), personnel office coworker injury case, filed by longtime coworker Evelyn Bertram due to hazardous levels of tobacco smoke in Personnel Office, causing her injury, in which coworkers such as myself provided statements, as aware of PTS hazard aspects.





D. Note also case law, e.g., "Poison is a dangerous subject. Gunpowder is the same. A torpedo is a dangerous instrument as is a spring gun, a loaded rifle or the like. They are instruments and articles in their nature calculated to do injury to mankind, and generally intended to accomplish that purpose. They are essentially, and in their elements, instruments of danger." Loop v Litchfield, 42 NY (3 Hand) 351, 359 (1870). Notice the key point, poison is "calculated" and "intended" to injure "mankind," i.e., the "universal malice" concept.








6.	Within the past two (2) years, have you been the subject of disciplinary action, or of an adverse performance evaluation, which remains in your personnel file?  Explain. 





A. TACOM having never been provided notice of charges, specifics, review rights notice, "informed choice," it is nonetheless refusing me the right in Sullivan, 720 F2d 1266, of remaining on rolls. Jurisdiction for agency doing this is lacking IAW 5 USC § 552a and case law. Notice is required IAW constitutional due process and 5 USC §75l3(b). Denying me right to work, and my pay, each day and pay period is continuing, in essence, a continuing, or daily, suspension w/o notice. This is forced leave. [Per Hanifan v U.S., 173 Ct Cl 1053; 354 F2d 358, 364 (1965), "The rule has been firmly established in pay cases 'that lawful administrative action depriving claimant of a procedural right voids the action and leaves the plaintiff to his money otherwise die, until (at the least) proper procedural steps are completed [citiations omitted] . . . . These references [cited by the agency] do not mean that the agency's action is fully effective to separate the employee for all purposes; as is often the case in judicial proceedings, an appeal or application for review by the Commission suspends the final operative effect of the intial decision. It follows that an employee who has been deprived of a procedural right by the Commission [board] must be regarded as not yet lawfully removed and thus entitled to his pay otherwise due." Thiis principle has long been established as applicable to personnel actions. They are void when there has been substantial procedural violation. See, e.g., Vitarelli v Seaton, 359 US 535, 539-40; 79 S Ct 968, 972; 3 L Ed 2d 1012 (1959); Service v Dulles, 354 US 363; 77 S Ct 1152; 1 L Ed 2d 1403 (1957); Leone v U.S., 203 Ct Cl 334 (1974); Jones v U.S., 203 Ct Cl 544 (1974); Gratehouse v U.S., 206 Ct Cl 288; 512 F2d 1104, 1108 (1975) cert den 434 US 955; 98 S Ct 480; 54 L Ed 2d 313 (1977).]





B. The "right to work" without discrimination is well-established, Yick Wo v Hopkins, 118 US 356 (1886); and Truax v Raich, 239 US 33 (1915). And TACOM continues refusal to provide performance appraisals, at due dates, pursuant to its refusal to abide by the rule of law on advance notice, specificity, review rights notice, informed voluntary  uncoerced choice, etc., as cited herein. See also Prof. Alfred Blumrosen, et al., "Injunctions Against Occupational Hazards: The Right to Work Under Safe Conditions," 64 Cal. Law Rev  (#3) 702 at 707 (May 1976) ("fits comfortably within existing principles of equity"); and the immediate subsequent case applying this concept, 32 CFR § 203 and AR 1-8 were issued promptly after the smoke-free rights case, Shimp v N J Bell Tele Co, 145 N J Super 516; 368 A2d 408 (1976). 32 CFR § 203 and AR 1-8 immediately followed applying this concept, and 4000 years of the pertinent legal doctrine, traceable back to "At least . . .  the time of the Assyrian king Hammurabi, a person has not been able to use land in a way that causes injury to another. See Mallett v. Taylor, 78 Or. 208, 213, 152 P. 873 (1915)," Christianson v Snohomish Health District,133 Wash 2d 647; 946 P2d 768 (1997); "the law is practically the same to-day as it was in the year 2250 B.C.," and citing Robert F. Harper’s The Code of Hammurabi about 2250 B.C. (Chicago: U of Chicago Press, 1904), §§ 53-54; and Aldred's Case, 9 Coke 48 (1610), cited in e.g., Camfield v United States, 167 US 518, 522-523 (1897); Rex v White and Ward, 1 Burr 333 (KB, 1757), and Rex v Neil, 2 Carr & Payne 485 (Eng, 1826) ("It is not necessary that a public nuisance should be injurious to health; if there be smells offensive to the senses, that is enough, as the neighborhood has a right to fresh and pure air").  DOD and Army issued their rules applying these concepts and the right to remain at work in safe conditions.  TACOM, MSPB, etc., blatantly flouted the entire meaning, intent, purpose, and words of the rules.





C. The ouster process, with forced leave, forced LWOP, no charges at each point recorded in 5 USC 7513.(b) notice, each incident is doubling up, compounding, of incident after incident, while refusing normal review others receive as a matter of course. Court precedents cite principles that would preclude doing the doubling up that TACOM has done, e.g., Piccone v U.S., 186 Ct Cl 752; 407 F2d 866 (1969) (separation of an employee for disability premature while appeal in process); FIA v Kucharski, 468 Mich. 202; 661 NW2d 216 (2003) (premature rights termination "not permitted to proceed . . . where the [person's] appeal remains pending" -- here, mine obviously were and are pending, and TACOM was pretending to do processing of same!





D. Note also the continuing demand concept. concept, Fall River D & F Corp v NLRB, 482 US 27, 52 (1987) ("Under the 'continuing demand' rule, when [someone, me] has made a . . . demand [request for EEO review] that has been rejected by the employer, this demand remains in force until the moment when the employer attains [obeys] the [rule, e.g., 29 CFR 1613 now 1614, process").





E. TACOM's reprisal is affecting personnel file on a continuing basis, making it devoid of all records it should contain including in the last two years, and the typical pattern of awards and recognition I'd have received, typically within last few months, e.g., more recognition for never using sick leave, etc.





7. 	If you have been the subject of a repeated pattern of retaliation, repeat the reporting in Nos. (1) through (6), for each instance of retaliation.  See details listed in response to first full narrative.





A. The pattern is evident from the various incidents previously narrated.  In summary, without repeating each aspect, this pattern is continuing since June 1979 disclosures, with ouster data noted as early as October 1979 (by the 1996 Gonzellas Williams letter cited herein), well within the time frame of case law for showing reprisals. No preceding reprimands, suspensions had been provided, instead a long record of awards. Reason exists to believe that agency has removed such data from my personnel file; and destroyed many pertinent records. Agency refuses me notice of rights by which to seek review. Cancelled investigation by Calloway pretending hearing. Cancelled grievance review, EEO review, and objected to MSPB having jurisdiction, all with goal to prevent any review at all, as per my personnel training showing I'd succeed if review on merits were allowed, as of course intially happened with the winning of the Janaury 1980 USACARA Report and TACOM's pretending to comply, but which pretense EEOC documented as false, February 1982 and April 1983 (83 FEOR 3046).





B. Federal employers cannot claim to have a basis for discipline/ removal based on "approved leave." Punishing an employee for approved leave is an improper reason, Bond v Vance, 117 US App DC 203, 204; 327 F2d 901, 902 (1964); Washington v Dept of Army, 813 F2d 390, 394 (CA Fed, 1987). (I didn't request any leave.) Pursuant to Weiden v Weiden, 246 Mich 347, 352; 224 NW 345 (1929), malice may be inferred from lack of probable cause.





C.  Pay from TACOM has been cut off since March 1980 (forced vacation and sick leave) and then beginning December 1980, prohibited forced LWOP in direct violation of TACOM's own regulation 600-5.14-27 et seq., and thus also in violation of 5 CFR §1206, not to mention 5 USC § 7513.(b).  Note that the Standard Form 50 notice does NOT even condescend (Box 30) to give a reason for the forced LWOP. This document was still in the Personnel File the last I saw it.





D. "To decide the case we need look no further than the maxim that no man may take advantage of his own wrong." Glus v Brooklyn Eastern District Terminal, 359 US 231, 232 (1959). Here, the "wrong" is by TACOM, blatantly, deliberately, maliciously, without even condescending to say why on the record, it violates its own express rule! Pursuant to SEC v Chenery , 332 US 194, 196-197 (1947), please "judge the propriety of action solely by the grounds invoked"; not by "counsel's post hoc rationalizations" assuming arguendo that TACOM will attempt to provide such to your office, but only by what is "given" on the record. Note words from a related employee precedent, McNutt v Hills, 426 F Supp 990, 1004 (D DC, 1977) ("no reasons for the conclusion were given"). Agency decisions must make findings on all material issues; reasons must be clearly enunciated; each disregard of its own staff writings must be explained, here disregard of USACARA, Bacon's, Adler's and Stallings' promises of review, etc., etc. In re United Corporation, 249 F2d 168 (CA 3, 1957). An agency must let it be known in the decision the basis for conclusions; there is to be no speculation; even proper reasons are not to be implied; reject improper processing (here, all aspects including no hearing nor investigation) due to the unfairness. Great Lakes Screw Corp v N. L. R. B., 409 F2d 375 (CA 7, 1969). Absence of required findings requires reversal, even if there may allegedly or actually be evidence in the record to support proper findings. Anglo-Canadian Shipping Co, Ltd v Federal Maritime Comm'n, 310 F2d 606 (CA 9, 1962); an agency is not allowed to put reviewer in the position of speculating as to the basis for its conclusion; reviewer must know what the agency decision means first. Northeast Airlines, Inc v Civil Aeronautics Bd, 331 F2d 579 (CA 1, 1964).  This is particularly apt with respect to the forced LWOP without reasons, on the pertinent document (Standard Form 50's) face, when so clearly contrary to both TACOM Reg. 600-5.14-27 et seq.; and the then 5 CFR § 1206; and the refusal of EEO counseling, investigation, etc., contrary to same TACOM Reg. 600-5.10 (TACOM's local EEO processing rule); not to mention the many other disregards of TACOM's own Reg. 600-5, e.g., 600-5.4 (career management); 600-5.5 (TACOM's local conduct and ethics rule); 600-5.7 (unemployment); 600-5.11 (hiring, retention, selection); 600-5.9 (grievances); 600-5.12 (position and pay management); 600-5.15 (promotion, selection, retention); 600-5.16 (performance appraisals); 600.5-18 (adverse actions, merits and procedures, and table of penalties); 600-5.19 (education and training). (TACOM's local rules copied, incorporated by reference, or modified AMC and Army rules within local authority, and other regulations such as by OPM, thus involved additional violations, incorporated herein by reference).





E. See also the government's own "recipe" for abuse as documented by, e.g., David W. Ewing, “Canning Directions: How the Government Rids Itself of Troublemakers," Harpers 16, 18, 22 (August 1979); Stephen M. Kohn and Michael D. Kohn, "An Overview of Federal and State Whistleblower Protection," 4 Antioch Law Journal 99-152 (Summer 1986); Thomas M. Devine and Donald G. Aplin, "Abuse of Authority: The Office of the Special Counsel and Whistleblower Protection," 4 Antioch Law J 5-71 (Summer 1986);  MSPB's corroborative analyses, e.g., those cited by its Retaliation Rate Study (December 2000), www.mspb.gov/studies/00decnws.pdf (A seven - twelve per cent report retaliation rate means vast numbers of incidents); and Devine and Aplin, "Whistleblower Protection--Gap Between Law and Reality," 31 Howard Law J (#2) 223-239 (1988), saying, e.g., the government does "go well beyond merely defeating a whistle blower . . . prove to others that no one is safe . . . make the most outrageous charges possible. . . . for purposes of teaching others a lesson, the more obvious the inconsistency [with work record (and law)] the better . . . .” The federal reprisal recipe, or "canning directions," have the "natural and probable consequences," i.e., intended effect, that they do terrorize the Civil Service.





F. See, e.g., parallel circumstances in other federal agencies, e.g., the FBI., cited by Investigative Reporter and Attorney Peter Lance, 1000 Years for Revenge: International Terrorism and the FBI: The Untold Story (New York: Regan Books, August 2003). Note that so a civil servant can at last become safe and free to do his job without fear, the importance of reaching “the point in the Bureau [government agency] where [the employee] was considered KMA. 'It stands for Kiss My Ass,' said [employee] Predtechenkis candidly. . . . I could retire at the end of the day if I wanted to. It's a comforting feeling. . .” (p 172). And, “To hear that from a decorated Bureau veteran is an indication of the atmosphere of fear that exists among FBI street agents today--the fear that expressing even modest disagreement with a supervisor, or staying loyal to an asset . . .  might result in an investigation with career-ending implications” (p 172). “Ironically, like Nancy Floyd, Smith found himself spending as much time battling his own agency and enduring the stress of office politics as he did chasing the bad guys” (p 214). With whistleblowers under constant attack, the Army was impacted. For example, it enlisted "Ali Mohammed, the traitorous ex-Egyptian Army officer who had become a U.S. Army sergeant and served as an instructor in the Special Operations Warfare School at Fort Bragg while working for al Qaeda," p 373. "At the same time he was instructing Green Berets at Fort Bragg . . . he was commuting . . . to train the . . . . 'jihad army.' He used his knowledge of Special Forces operations techniques to train the top commanders of al Qaeda in Khost, Afghanistan, along with elite members of bin Laden's own bodyguard in Sudan. . . . 'The fact that Osama [bin Laden] was able to put an operative like him into a Special Forces training school should have been a screaming alert to the community,' said one intelligence operative," p 374. But with nobody daring to "blow the whistle," who'd do the "alert?"





G. The article, “C.I.A. Was Given Data on Hijacker Long Before 9/11,” by James Risen and Eric Lichtblau (New York Times, 24 Feb 2004), shows what happens due to fear-induced civil service paralysis of action: “American investigators were given [by German investigators] the first name and telephone number of one of the Sept. 11 hijackers two and a half years before the attacks on New York and Washington, but the United States appears to have failed to pursue the lead aggressively. . . . The Germans considered the information on Mr. Shehhi particularly valuable, and the [9/11 investigating] commission is keenly interested in why it apparently did not lead to greater scrutiny of him.”





H. Prof. David Ray Griffin, The New Pearl Harbor (Northampton: Olive Branch Press, March 2004) and Interview http://independent.com/news/news906.htm, say, e.g., “Members of the FBI, the CIA, and other intelligence agencies have taken oaths to not reveal things they’ve been told not to reveal . . . and if they violate this oath, repercussions may occur. You have a wife and children, and somebody says to you, “If you go public with that I cannot guarantee the safety of your family.” Would you go public with that? You have to choose between your family’s welfare and the welfare of the nation, and your story might not do that much good. You might just be denounced as a conspiracy kook. The press would ignore you, belittle you. People might look into your past and find that you had done some things you’re not so proud of. People would learn very quickly to keep their mouths shut.” (Whether we do or do not accept the thesis of the book, the point that government employees know to"keep their mouths shut" for fear of retaliation of whatever type, is well on-target.





I. And note the terror at NASA with respect to not one but two Space Shuttles, and NASA "culture" of intimidation, as investigators showed in their Report, http://www.caib.us, and, e.g., the news Tuesday, 4 Feb 2003, that Space Shuttle Program Manager Ronald Dittemore said, originally, nobody had any reservations about the analysis of the data on the damage that occurred when the shuttle took off (about 20 inches of foam insulation fell off, potentially damaging shuttle heat tiles). No whistleblowing concern by any employee was expressed on the record. But two days later, Dittemore was saying: "Now I am aware, here some two days later, that there have been some reservations expressed by certain individuals, and it goes back in time." And, the concerned people "didn't come forward," Dittemore whined. No doubt they didn't! Even when CAIB showed up, they wouldn't talk, not until AFTER promised absolute secrecy, and interviews to be OFF NASA premises. Employees who become "whistleblowers" reporting suspected hazards, are widely known to be often retaliated against, punished, suspended, fired. Employees say so themselves when surveyed, as the MSPB Retaliation studies show; reprisal is a notorious federal management reaction; and people are killed as a "natural and probable consequences" of the federal retaliation policy and practice. Dittemore is now OUT, unpunished and in the clear, showing thousands of other Dittemores still in management that they can maintain a "culture" of fear that foreseeably kills, with impunity! no criminal charges ever filed, regarfdless of the body count of Americans.





J. The "natural and probable consequences," that a long-term policy and practice of bullying, extorting, intimidating, would have the clearly foreseeable result that the civil service is in fact intimidated, hesitant to "come forward," is what was intended, it is not "accidental," the concept that consequences were NOT "natural and probable" ones, but rather "chance or contingency," "abnormally," "unexpectedly," "fortuitous," due to "sudden, unexpected, external force," with "a reasonable belief that no harm is possible," and occurring "upon the instant, rather than something which continues, progresses or develops." Pages 14-15, Black's Law Dictionary, 5th ed., 1979.





K. A widespread, rampant, protracted, notorious intimidation policy with its incicents generally upheld, foreseeably causes intimidated people and leads to intimidation-type results.  One "is not required in crimes to prove that a defendant intended the precise consequences of his act and his criminal intent can be inferred from his act." Case law rejects the false and mythical notion that the injured party must also prove "that the [harm-causing party] intended the act that resulted in injury . . . intended to commit an injury, and . . . intended the very injury sustained. . . ." Masters v Becker, 22 App Div 2d 118; 254 NYS2d 633 (1964). And, Rum River Lumber Co v State, 282 NW2d 882 (Minn, 1979). A government facility negligently allowed a pyromaniac to escape. Of course, what he might specifically burn could not be predicted, only that he would foreseeably burn something. That amount of foreseeability is sufficient in law.  Government officials can themselves therefore be held liable for actions of subordinates, see, e.g., Application of Yamashita, 327 US 1 (1946), and Application of Honmo, 327 US 759 (1946), even though their exact "very" acts would be unknown.





L. "The proof of the pattern or practice [of reprisal and of non-processing, indeed of any facet herein cited as repeated] supports an inference that any particular decision [to commit such type action], during the period in which the policy was in force, was made in pursuit of that policy." Teamsters v U.S. , 431 US 324, 362 (1977). Note that pursuant to Franks v Bowman , 424 US 747, 772 (1976) ("once there has been a finding of classwide discrimination, the burden then shifts to the employer to prove that a class member was not discriminated against"; here in the federal service, there has been such massive and repeat showings of rampant abuses against government employees such that Congress itself has had to intervene!! And TACOM's own 1993 installation-wide cessation-of-permission to smoke, corroborates the widespread problem! Otherwise a tailored, targeted solution would have been had.)





M. "One cardinal principle must be borne in mind, that any element of illegality [law or rule violation] essential to a scheme or combination makes the whole illegal." Newton Co v Erickson, 70 Misc 291, 298; 126 NYS 949, 954 (6 Jan 1911). 





N. As a forced LWOP in violation of clear regulation designed expressly while I was there, to prevent exactly this type situation, is ultra-easy for you to deal with, please bifurcate this case at least to the extent of causing immediate verification of this portion of the case, and then direct that pay for the forced LWOP period be forthwith sent me in the same manner precisely as the SF 50, and exactly as it would have been paid, but for the TACOM misconduct (so I will have at least some money, as without funds it is impossible to do proper defense).  Note that the fraudulent forced LWOP SF 50 (Box 12) had a criminally fraudulent ending date, 13 Dec 1981, sheer invention and fabrication, without the sligtest evidence from me to support that date!, to obstruct the Mich Unemployment Office (MUO), as it premised its favorable ruling in my behalf in part on TACOM having setting no RTD date for me (i.e., a fact consistent with a "decision to terminate," an obvious unemployment-compensation-qualifying factor).





O. The LWOP time frame also substantially overlaps the same time period (Jan - Sep 1981) when MUO was providing me unemployment benefits, over TACOM objections. MUO in essence confirmed my unrestricted ability to work, rejecting TACOM's 'he's too sick' claims! Note that under Michigan law MCL § 421.28; MSA § 17.530.28(1)(c), a claimant who can't work (too sick for example), can NOT receive unemployment.  That issue was the heart of the case, though in view of the extreme violations in the manner of the ouster, for this IG case purpose, TACOM's outrageous abuse of process and obstruction of justice may be deemed more pertinent than that particular merit point.





P. In the federal civil service, employees receive pay during the pendency of administrative processing, whether representing themselves or others. 29 CFR § 1613.214(b); and Power v U. S.  [Army], 200 Ct Cl 157, 168-169; 597 F2d 258, 264-265 (1979). Reference 5 USC § 5596 n 85. TACOM disregarding this principle shows malice.





K. Employees who have had some success administratively, as appellant had in terms of the January 1980 USACARA Report, the favorable Feb 1982, April 1983, and March 1991 EEOC decisions commanding review (and even the TACOM pretenses, fraudulent and criminally false as they were, that review would occur), are to receive their pay during participation in court processing. Mitchell v Baldridge, 662 F Supp 907 (DDC, 1987) (discovery and pre-trial). TACOM disregarding this principle shows malice.  Not even this much was done for me.





Policy Dispute





8.  Why was the communication you made not simply a policy dispute within your office?





A.Coworker Bertram had been injured on the exact subject matter at issue, Re Bertram, OWCP File No. A9-190131 (January 1977), a fact of which I had personal knowledge as I was one of her witnesses. Personnel Officer Archie Grimmett said that worker compensation cases were also being filed by other employees due to the PTS hazard.  Dept of Army HQ had repeatedly noted TACOM's excessive sick leave useage. Congress had itself identified hazardous aspects, in 15 §§ USC 1331 - 1333 (a very rare hazard to be so recognized, most do not get a special law devoted to them).





B. Supervisor Jeremiah Kator agreed with me that TACOM was NOT following the AR 1-8 conditions precedent before smoking could be permitted, and assigned me to draw up a memo to bring the Personnel Office into compliance. CPO Archie Grimeett refused to sign it, thus triggering the subsequent reporting activity by me.  TACOM's Industrial Hygienist Edwin Braun agreed with me, and had long been recommending ventilation improvements, all of which recommendations had been ignored.





C. USACARA's Investigator Norma Kennedy agreed 25 Jan 1980.  Her report closely parallels the near-identical arbitration case of  Dept of Health, Educ and Welfare, Social Security Admin v AFGE Local 1923, 82-1 Lab Arb Awards (CCH) § 8206 (DC, 1982), and the precedent of Alford v City of Newport News, 220 Va 584; 260 SE2d 241 (1979); cf. subsequent Opinions of Michigan Attorney General 1987-1988, No. 6460, pp 167-171, 1987 Michigan Register 366 (25 Aug 1987) (taking "checkerboard style" action does not achieve genuine safety). EEOC agreed. The further violations of rules are blatant, as will be shown once review begins.





D. Management officials such as Grimmett, Hoover, Benacquista, Holt, etc., were personally violating rules at issue, and conceived my disclosures, and use of the grievance and EEO and IG processes, with the content being those violations, as affecting them (as of course corrective action would have). They abused authority by disregard of the rules in first place, then compounded it by embarking on course of extortion and obstructing justice, to prevent me getting review, including as repeatedly ordered by EEOC. They refused me notice of charges, rights, counselor, investigation, and processing as ordered by EEOC, not to mention the rule of law, whether or not I had ever gone to EEOC.





E. As a matter of personal knowledge, having worked in the grievance office, knowing CPR 700.771, I know that deference is owed to pertinent USACARA Reports, on official and authoritative agency interpretation of Army's own regulations, not subject to further review!! Spann v Gen. McKenna, 615 F2d 137 (CA 3, 1980).





F. On the various personnel precedents, they are a matter of record as cited in the FPM Supplement 752-1, referring to ones issued up to its issuance.  Of course, afterwards, ousted without notice, deprived of access to office and its personnel and law rules and volumes, I had to self-teach myself the legal research system, something others learn in law school with teachers and guidance.  (My doing this helps refute the bizarre and aberrant claim of "total disaiblity" in terms of the essential elements of the job, writing and speaking.)





G. My disclosure of information was of matters each of which I reasonably believed evidences a violation of rules or law, a concept cited in precedents such as Zygmunt v Dept of HHS, 61 MSPR 379 (1994).





H. This is a situation "when knowledge was treated as a crime." (Quote from Fergus M. Bordewich, "City Lost in the Jungle," 152 Reader's Digest 112-120, at p 118 (May 1998) (discussing the hatred, under smoker Pol Pot, that Cambodian Khmer Rouge Communists had for educated people, leading to the Khmer genocide against same.)





I. Per U.S. v Brumley, 116 F3d 728, 731 (CA 5, 1997) cert den 522 US 1028 (1997) (By law, 18 USC §§ 1341, 1343, and 1346, mail fraud defrauding employer of "honest services" is illegal. The term “‘honest services’ can include ‘honest and impartial government.’”) Per U.S. v Woodward, 149 F3d 46, 71 (CA 1, 1998), cert den 525 US 1138 (1999) (“A [retaliator against whistleblowers] defendant may be prosecuted for deprivation of honest services [even] if he [the retaliator] has [not a single illegal intent but] a dual intent, i.e., if he is found to have intended both a lawful [as retaliators allege] and an unlawful purpose to some degree.”) The laws against crimes of the type shown on the record, go welkl beyond "policy disagreement," to blatant criminality, falsification, mail fraud, recurring again and again.





Documentation





9. What documentation can you provide of the matter reported above?  List the document, and in parenthesis explain how it advances some portion of your case.





Jeffrey McLain's memorandum on not wanting to deal with me (verifies EEO access denial))


Qualifications waiver (undermines the TACOM qualifications story) �OPM qualifications denials (shows same, both show no jurisdiction for agency acts) �Col. Bishop letter (shows I was NOT told my EEO rights, as per TACOM plan to force me


	 into MSPB forum, notoriously anti-employee)�EEOC H Perez letter (shows early noting ouster, pre-notice) �EEO G Williams letter (shows likewise) �EEOC orders, plural (show pattern of agency refusing me review, and the earliness of doing so,


	 consistent with ouster w/o notice)


Depositions (show many TACOM admissions against interest) �TACOM newspaper (shows derogatory remarks) �TACOM-R 600-5, 14-27 etc. (shows prohibition of forced leave) �MUO decisions (overrules TACOM inability daim) 


LWOP ban rule, and forced LWOP SF-50 (show the blatancy of the LWOP violation)


SF-50 with "fault" based "removal" contrasted with SF-52 requesting no fault "separation"


pertinent EEOC decisions (show two contradicotry type of charges, ie.e., not proper notice)


pertinent law reviews (show background)


record of awards for good performance and attendance (show TACOM inconsistency with the record)


Legal Office Opinion of 19 June 1979 (shows authority to stop the PTS behavior)


USACARA Report of 25 January 1980 (analyzes ARV1-8 non-theoretically)


April 1993 Smoking Ban Memos (verify authority previously falsely denied)


The Jonelle Calloway USACARA Cancellation Memo June 1981 (has fraudulent cancellation)


The Within Grade Increase of June 1980 (contradicts TACOM's inability claim, shows my


	supervisor's support, precludes forced disability appl'n under to OPM guidelines)


My November 1979 IG papers (shows early whistleblowing)


My safety reports/disclosures (shows same, heads off theorertical view of AR 1-8)


CPO Archie Grimmett's memo opposing my "Open Door" meeting with CG (shows reprisal)


All documents cited herein





10.  Are there witnesses to the events reported above, who would swear out an Affidavit for you?  Please list them, by name, title, and point of contact.  Note in parenthesis what they would swear to and how it would advance your case.





Kenneth Adler, EEO Officer, TACOM (refusal to allow me EEOC review, defying EEO


	 orders to do processing, refusing my requests in EEO)


Thomas Alef, Pos Class Spec, TACOM (quid pro quo, his aid in ousting me without rule


	 compliance, in exchange for promotion, how he benefited from ousting competitor)


Carma Averhart, Pos Class Spec, TACOM (quid pro quo, her aid in ousting me without rule


	 compliance, exchange for promotion, how she benefited from ousting competitor)





Emily Bacon, Atty, TACOM (her falsely cancelling EEO review, witness coaching, obstructing


	my every review effort on and on; ex parte contacts with MSPB to invent June 1981, 7 	MSPR 13, list of pretended actions; confidence MSPB would ignore my acceptance)


Col. John Benacquista, Chief of Staff, TACOM (extortion, suspension without notice, disregard


	of duty to enforce rules due to his personal opposition to AR 1-8, etc.)


Evelyn Bertram, Empl Rel Spec, TACOM (injury from bad working conditions; her altering the


	ouster SF-50 from what the preceding SF-52 had requested; her awareness that there


	is no BFOQ re PTS per her Staffing background)


Col. Edward Bishop, C-Cong Lias Ofc, AMC (verify rights not told me, his misleading letter to


	Senator Carl Levin) 


James Bowling, IG, TAGOM (letter under Secy Stone to review case, obstructed at TACOM)


Edwin Braun, Industrial Hygienist, TACOM (regulatory violations verified)





Jonelle Calloway, Investigator, USACARO (TACOM falsely cancelling review; also, please


	include all the affidavits she collected in 1981 on my situation before her investigation


	was abruptly fraudulently canceled by Emily Bacon) �Helen F. Cochran, former supervisor, same as at Michigan Unemployment Agency (on forced


	ouster as she supported me at the hearing; awareness is no BFOQ re PTS)


Nestor Cruz, Dir, ORA, EEOC (ordering TACOM to allow review February 1982 etc.)





MG Oscar Decker, Cmd Gen, TACOM (refusal to meet with me under "Open Door" policy in


	reprisal against my filings, as advised by CPO, and his lack of due diligence in enforcing


	the rules at issue)





Frank Gaal, Info Officer, TACOM, (publishing hostile article)


Gloria Gilmore, Management Employee Relations Supervisor (refusal to provide specifics on


	the "fault" vs non-Fault" ouster despite being "assigned" to do so; her awareness that


	there is no BFOQ re PTS per her Staffing background)


Archie Grimmett, Civ Pers Officer, TACOM (non-enforcing rules contrary to recommendation


	otherwise by my supervisor Kator; and reprisal re above cited "Open Door" policy)


Fred Grosby, Pos Class Spec, TACOM (writing hostile article) 





Francis J. Holt, Physician, TACOM (regulatory violations at issue, the hazard to all, the proper


	status during hazards, qualifications of record) 


Edward Hoover, Personnel Officer, TACOM (his personal rule violations, ousting me without


	notice, ex parte contacts with DCG, not having provided me advance notice, nor


	notice of review rights,  ex parte contacts with MSPB to invent June 1981, 7 MSPR


	13, list of pretended actions; confidence MSPB would ignore my acceptance etc.)


Joseph W. Howe, Asst Dir, SD, OPM (TACOM's 5 USC 552a violation, i.e., no BFOQ re


	PTS) 





Col. John R. Jeter, DA IG Team Chief, Pentagon (my November 1979 IG actions)





Jeremiah Kator, Supv Pos Class Spec, TACOM (my disclosures, and my good performance;


	awareness of no BFOQ re PTS)





MSPB Officials (MSPB's own ability to cease permitting smoking in 1986 without "hardship,"


	their personal willingness to defy the rule of law, even to fabricate events; awareness


	that the ability to cease permitting PTS behavior confirms the lack of a BFOQ)


�Norma Kennedy, Investigator, USACARO (her official, competent, reasoned interpretation of


	AR 1-8; contradicts TACOM's false inability claim; the finality of USACARA Reports)





Susan Lewandowski, TACOM attorney (agency authority to cease permitting PTS behavior)  





John O. Marsh, Jr. Secy of Army (his view that use of tobacco products adversely impacts


	Army personnel health and readiness, impairing such critical military skills as night vision


	hand-eye coordination, and resistance to cold weather injuries, and increases


	susceptibility to disease, poses a substantial threat to Army well-being, with immediate


	steps needed to eliminate its usage, and every Army member charged to make this goal


	a reality, as stated in his April 1986 Proclamation.)


Treva McCall, Exec Secy, EEOC (further order to TACOM to let me have review)





Henry Perez, Jr., Complaints Examiner, EEOC (saw ouster pre-notice)


Ersa Poston, MSPB Member (willingness to fabricate events June 1981)


Probate Court Staff (no filing of the type falsely fabricated and alleged to adjudicator)





Robert Shirock, Safety Office, TACOM (action on my disclosures)


Annie G. Smith, Acting EEO Officer (shock at learning of the forced LWOP contrary to rules,


	then suddenly changing atttitude, follow the TACOM line)


BG David Stallings, Dep Cmdr, TACOM (ousting me without awaiting my reply absent refusal


	to provide me material relied on, his ex parte contacts with E Hoover, unawareness


	of key points, showing his decision was solely because of said ex parte contacts)


Szekely, Scott, CID Officer (investigation of TACOM ex parte contacts with adjudicators,


	mail fraud citing my applying for retirement, a claim not of record and thus unmakeable


	except by ex parte false communications; TACOM obstructing of his investigation after


	his verifying the case file but before being allowed to talk with adjudicators)





Richard Tarnas, Atty, TACOM (contradicts TACOM's false inability claim, cites full authority)





Ronald P. Wertheim, MSPB Member (willingness to fabricate events June 1981, treating it as


	joke; awareness that PTS is not a BFOQ)


Gen. John A. Wickham, Army Chief of Staff (his view that tobacco products use adversely


	impacts Army personnel health and readiness, impairing such critical military skills as


	night vision hand-eye coordination, and resistance to cold weather injuries, increases


	susceptibility to disease, poses a substantial threat to Army well-being, with immediate


	steps needed to eliminate its usage, and every Army member charged to make this goal


	a reality, as stated in his April 1986 Proclamation.)


Gonzellas Williams, EEO Officer, TACOM (Oct 1979 verification ouster)


Col. Eugene Wilson, Chief of Staff, TACOM (contradicts TACOM's false inability claim, by


	ceasing permission to smoke, verifying installation-wide situation, vs problem only in my


	office; confirming no BFOQ for something so easily eliminated; confirming he never


	heard of the  "undue hardship" claim as it was one invented solely for my case.)





USACARA Investigators, now DOD Investigators [www.cpms.osd.mil/oci/index.html], 1980


	to present, and Detroit EEOC Administrative Judges (to impartially verify that they have


	never been allowed to process the issues cited herein, as TACOM has refused to


	allow the case to proceed past the so-called "counseling" stage, thus each investigator /


	Administrative Judge can verify that each has never done the investigation / hearing each


	respectively normally does once an agency allows review to reach such post-counseling


	stage).


 		(all cumulatively show specifics and pattern. Here, as "essential


		elements" (no notice, etc.) can be determined as a matter of law,


		by documents already in existence, no witnesses may be needed,


		pursuant to the "essential element" standard of Celotex, supra,


		477 US 323 (1986).


